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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Chairman’s Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2010

| am pleased to present to shareholders the AriRegabrt and Audited Financial Statements of the Gamgdor
the year ended 31 December 2010.

From 1 January to 31 December 2010 (“the PerioBQropean equity markets fell with the Dow Jones
Eurostoxx 50 down 5.8%.

During the Period, prices of the Company’s Euraetand Sterling shares performed in line with gguadices
such as the Stoxx 600 (up 8.63%) and the S&P 50A 2.ir8%).

The net asset value (NAV) of the Company’s Euroratiacreased 11.49% while the share price went up
13.20%. The NAV of the Sterling share increased@%vhile the share price went up 9.46%.

The discount of the share price to the NAV of thedeshare reduced slightly during the period frddm2b6 to
19.2%. The discount of the share price to the NAYhe Sterling share was almost unchanged from%aat
19.5%.

The determinants of share price are the NAV refigcthe performance of the underlying investmentdfu
(Boussard & Gavaudan Fund Plc and, previously, Earld Limited), and the degree of discount or pramio
NAV at which the shares trade, which in turn isvdn by the supply and demand in the market pldee, t
liquidity of the underlying shares and the genematket sentiment.

With regard to the performance of the NAV and theiew of recent developments, | refer you to thee€lors’
Report and the Investment Manager's Report whigfhlight the main features of the results of theitess
over the Period. For your information, the Compalsp publishes on its website (www.bgholdingltd.yalaily
and monthly NAVs and monthly newsletters based ata grovided to the Company by the Administratad an
the Investment Manager.

In order to offer sufficient liquidity to the invies's, the Company has been buying back its owneshsince
early 2008. In 2010, the Company bought back 64ZmEuro shares (8,202,243 in 2009) and no Stesliages
(30,000 in 2009). As at §1December 2010, 2,005,832 Euro shares were hdldeimsury representing 3.91% of
the total share capital issued.

We will continue to make every endeavour to seeksuees to narrow the discount to NAV and increhse t
liquidity of the shares.

On behalf of the Board | wish to thank the sharegéid and advisors to the Company for their contrsigport.

Christopher Fish
Chairman
26 April 2011



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

The Directors present their annual report and fireln statements for the year ended
31° December 2010.

Principal Activities

From 1 January 2010 to 31 October 2010, BoussarGakaudan Holding Limited (the “Company”) had
substantially all of its assets invested in Sarkd-Limited (“Sark”), a Europe-focused multi-strayegedge fund
which aimed primarily at arbitraging instrumentsttwiinear or non-linear pay-offs on equities anedit
markets. The overall investment objective of Sadswvio provide investors with consistent absolutarns
primarily through investing and trading in finarldiastruments of companies incorporated in or whaosecipal
operations are in Europe.

On 1st November 2010, the Company redeemed itstiment in Sark and invested in Boussard & Gavaudan
Fund Plc (the “Fund”), an Irish Qualified Investdfand with the same investment policy as that whicts
pursued by Sark.

Additionally, the Company may enter into privateiigyg investments and approximately 1.5% of its tsssader
management is currently so invested.

Boussard & Gavaudan Asset Management LP (“BGAM”tle “Investment Manager”) is the investment
manager of the Company, the Fund and Sark.

Review of Recent Developments

The performance of the Company is driven primaoijythe financial results of the Fund and, to a miesiser
extent, from the accretive effect of the share bagk. Over the period, the contribution of the arévequity
investments to the performance of the Company baa marginal.

From 1 January to 31 October 2010, the NAV of Satfkuro A share class posted a 7.73% return. From 1
November to 31 December 2010, the NAV of the Fuililieo A share class posted a 1.70% return.

Over the five year period ended on 31 December 20ONAV of Sark’s Euro A share posted an annadlis
return of 7.05% with an annualised volatility 0B3%. This compares favourably with the Dow Jonesd&r
Suisse Convertible Arbitrage Hedge Fund Index (fnynbranded “Credit Suisse/Tremont Hedge Fund /
Convertible Bond Index”) which posted an annualisetdrn of 5.02% with an annualised volatility df.20%,
with the Dow Jones Credit Suisse Multi-Strategy gteéfund Index (formerly branded “Credit Suisse/Toatm
Hedge Fund / Multi Strategy Index”) which postedaamualised return of 4.62% with an annualisedtilibjaof
7.48%, with the HFRI RV Fixed Income-Convertible riglo Arbitrage Index (HFRICAI) which posted an
annualised return of 7.26% with an annualised itjatof 12.32% and with the HFRI Fund Weighted
Composite Index which posted an annualised retim&7% with an annualised volatility of 7.57% owbe
same period.

In the circumstances, the Directors are satisfieth ark's and the Fund’s strategies and performanc
particularly given the market conditions.

- Over the Period, European equity markets wentrdaith the Dow Jones Eurostoxx 50 at -5.8%.

- Volatility on stock markets was stable with th®AX index ending at 19.1% from 20.8% and the VStoxx
index at 23.9% from 24.1%.

- Credit spreads were almost unchanged with thesttCrossover finishing at 437bps from 432bps.

The Euro shares closed at the end of the peri@dafl5, up 13.20% over the Period, and the Stesliages saw
a 9.46% increase, closing at £10.36. Whilst the No&kthe Euro shares went up 11.49% to €13.80 amdNthV
of the Sterling shares went up 9.57% to £12.87dtheount to NAV reduced slightly from 20.4% to 2% for
the Euro shares and went from 19.4% to 19.5% fSterling shares.

Finally, the Company continued to actively imprdhe liquidity of the shares in the market by couitiry its
share buy-backs and sales of treasury shares @am&udrAmsterdam and the London Stock Exchange.

The assets under management were €683m at 31 Dec&®h0, down from €690 million at 31 December
20009.



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Results for the year and State of Affairs at 3% December 2010

The Statement of Financial Position and the Staténtd Comprehensive Income for the year ended
31° December 2010 are set out in the enclosed finbsigilements.

Directors
The Directors at the date of this report include:

- Christopher Fish, Chairman;
- Nicolas Wirz;
- Sameer Sain.

As all of the Directors were re-elected at the &stual general meeting, none of them is requivestand for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeti However, as recommended at section A.7.1 ef th
Combined Code on Corporate Governance, the diedtdéend to retire by rotation and accordingly Mr
Christopher Fish will at the forthcoming annual geat meeting retire and, being eligible, standréselection.

Save as disclosed in these financial statemergsCtdmpany is not aware of any potential conflidtsnterest
between any duty of any of the Directors owed tanid their respective private interests. Each Doreis paid
an annual fee of €30,000, the Chairman is entitbececeive €50,000 per annum and the ChairmaneoAtidit
Committee receives an additional fee of €7,500gn&um.

Directors’ interests in shares

As of 31 December 2010, Christopher Fish had investedcitjrer indirectly, in 8,631 ordinary Euro shards o
the Company. Sameer Sain had invested, directigdirectly, in 10,000 ordinary Euro shares of thenpany
and Nicolas Wirz had invested, directly or inditgcin 16,168 ordinary Euro shares of the Company.

On 1 July 2010 the shareholders renewed the Congpayhority to make market purchases of its shares
Under such authority the Company is allowed to pase up to 14.99% of its own shares. Between 12019
and 32' December 2010 the Company purchased 2,475,845dhares of the Company, representing 4.55% of
the total shares in issue .

Corporate Governance

Since the revision in April 2010 of the listing esl of the London Stock Exchange, the company haa be
required to comply with the Combined Code on CaapmiGovernance (the “Code”) published by the Firsnc
Reporting Council. The Directors place a high degreimportance on ensuring that high standardogforate
governance are maintained and have adopted the Villtidk sets out principles of good governance andde

of best practice for listed companies. There arsignificant requirements of the Code that the Camypdoes
not comply with.

The Board meets formally at least four times a ykaaddition to these scheduled meetings, ovePtriod the
Board has met on aad hocbasis and has consulted the Investment Managetardg The Directors are
satisfied that they have been kept fully informddtlte investment performance, financial and opereti
controls, and other matters relevant to the businéshe Company. The Directors have, where necgssdhe
furtherance of their duties, taken independentgasibnal advice at the expense of the Company.

The attendance record of the Directors is set elavix

Quarterly Boarc| Ad hoc Boarc Audit
Meeting Meetings Committee
Number of Meetings 4 2 2
Meetings attended:
Christopher Fish 4 2 2
Nicolas Wirz 4 2 2
Sameer Sain 4 2 2




Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

The focus at Board meetings is a review of investmgerformance, marketing/investor relations, risk
management, general administration and compliapeey group information and industry, regulatory and
corporate governance issues. Board papers ardatedun advance allowing Directors the opporturidyadd
agenda items they consider appropriate for Boasdudsion. Each Director is required to inform tleail of
any potential or actual conflicts of interest priorBoard discussion.

The Board evaluates its performance and the pediocm of individual Directors on an annual basig] an
believes that the current mix of skills and expeee of the Directors are appropriate to the requérgts of the
Company.

Directors’ Duties and Responsibilities
The Directors responsibilities are as follows:

- Statutory obligations and public disclosure;

- Strategic matters and financial reporting;

- Oversight of management and advisors’ matters;

- Risk assessment and management, including ragprtionitoring, governance and Control;
- Other matters having a material effect on the Gamy.

Committees of the Board

The Board has not deemed it necessary to appaiatreénation or remuneration committee as, being amag
wholly of non-executive Directors, the whole Boahsiders these matters.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee, with defined terms of referenaed duties, has been established and comprises the
following as members: Nicolas Wirz (Chairman), Gtopher Fish and Sameer Sain. The Committee ragets
least twice a year when the Company’s semi-annodl annual financial reports to Shareholders aréeo
considered by the Board and, where possible, thditADommittee meetings precede the relevant Board
meeting.

The Committee’s responsibilities which were disglegrduring the year includeter alia:

* monitoring and reviewing the integrity of the Seannual and annual financial reports and the iaer
financial controls;

« making recommendations to the Board in relat@the appointment of the external auditors and @ppg
their remuneration and the terms of their engagémen

« developing and implementing policies on the eregagnt of the external auditors to supply non-aselivices;
« reviewing and monitoring the independence, objigtand effectiveness of the external auditors;

« reviewing the arrangements in place within theeBiment Manager whereby their staff may, in canfick,
raise concerns about possible improprieties inam&ttf financial reporting or other matters insafarthey may
affect the Company;

« reviewing the terms of the Investment Managemgmneement; and

« considering annually whether there is a neediferCompany to have its own internal audit function

The Company considers that the Audit Committeeropmance of its duties fulfils the requirements®8.2 of
the Code.

The audit committee does not award any non-audikwiche full Board would have to approve any noitwu
work. Ernst & Young LLP have been appointed astausliand a resolution for their re-appointment tél
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meetihg.Audit Committee considered the experiencetandre
of the audit partner and staff and the nature awellof services provided. The Committee receivesiomation
from the auditors that they have complied withrgtlevant UK professional and regulatory requirersemt
independence.

The Company’s Audit Committee meets representatiféise Investment Manager, who report as to tloper
conduct of the business in accordance with thelaggny environment in which both the Company arel th
Investment Manager operate. The Company’s extawnditors also attend this meeting at its requestraport
if the Company has not kept proper accounting ks;aor if they have not received all the informatand
explanations required for their audit.



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Internal Controls

In accordance with the provisions of C.2.1 of thed€ the Audit Committee has conducted a revieuwhef
Company’s system of internal controls and is satisthat they are sufficient to withstand the rigksvhich the
Company is subject.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Compsngystem of internal controls and for reviewing it
effectiveness. The Board has developed a framewwak is designed to identify, evaluate and mandge t
primary operating risks faced by the Company. Ttanéwork specifies an ongoing review timetable that
ensures at least an annual review of the Compaygtem of internal controls, including financiahevational,
compliance and risk management.

The Board has delegated the management of the Corspavestment portfolio, the provision of custody
services, the administration, registrar and congosacretarial functions (including the independsitulation

of the Company’s Net Asset Value); and the proauctf the annual financial reports, which are iretegently
audited. The Board retains accountability for thactions it delegates and is responsible for thetesy of
internal controls. Formal contractual arrangemdrdge been put in place between the Company and the
providers of these services.

The Company has appointed Boussard & Gavaudan Maetgement, LP as Investment Manager pursuant to
an investment management agreement entered intd3omctober 2006. The Board has reviewed the
performance of the Investment Manager and is sadishat the continuing appointment of the Investme
Manager on the terms agreed is in the interesteefShareholders. Please refer to the above pegtititied
“Review of Recent Developments” of this report foreview of the performance of the Company. Aldeage
refer to note 9 to the financial statements forthfer details on the terms of the investment managém
agreement.

Compliance reports are provided at each quarteshr® meeting by the Company’s Secretary.

Audit Confirmation

So far as each of the Directors is aware, then® irelevant audit information of which the Companguditors
are unaware and each Director has taken all rebkoiséeps he ought to have taken as a Directorakem
himself aware of any relevant information and téakksh that the Company’s Auditors are aware @it th
information.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company considers the ongoing concerns of iok&e®n the basis of open and regular dialogue thith
Investment Manager.

The Company keeps abreast of regulatory and ststab@nges and responds as appropriate.
The Board assesses its performance on an annusibdasgd on the guidelines set out by the Code.
Going Concern

The Board conducts a rigorous and proportionatesassent of the Company’s operational and finariséb
with reference to the Company’s cash flow requiretsiedebt position and the liquidity of its invesimts.

Currently the Company has a small debt positionsghaurpose is to finance acquisitions of its oware$. The
debt position is repaid in full using the proceéasn redemptions of Boussard & Gavaudan Fund shames
monthly basis. It remains at the discretion of @mmpany to continue its share buy back activitthanfuture.

Other than this debt position, the only financiaienitments of the Company are its ongoing feesexpenses.
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reabtaexpectation that the Company has adequataroesoto

continue in operational existence for the foreskehlture. Thus the financial statements have lpgepared on
a going concern basis.



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Relations with Shareholders

While the Company reports formally to the sharebddwice a year, it also maintains a website whimfitains
comprehensive information (www.bgholdingltd.comhid includes all historical communication, investre
philosophy, risk management policies, Investmeninddger’'s reports, statistical information and cogper
governance guidelines. Additionally, shareholdews welcome to contact Directors of the Company,ukho
they wish to have a dialogue and/or provide angteek. Finally, if required, the Company can alsaken
available representatives of the Investment Mantmshareholders.

By order of the Board

Christopher Fish Nicolas Wirz
Chairman Director
26 April 2011



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Statement of Director’s responsibilities
For the year ended 31 December 2010

The Directors are responsible for the preparatidimancial statements in accordance with applieabuernsey
Law and generally accepted accounting principleser@sey Law requires the directors to prepare €&isdn
statements for each financial year which give a &ind fair view of the state of affairs of the Camyp as at the
end of the year and profit or loss for that year.

In preparing those financial statements, the Dinescshould:

- Select suitable accounting policies and thenyagiiem on a consistent basis;

- Make judgements and estimates that are reasoaabtlprudent;

- State whether applicable accounting standarde heeen followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statemertd

- Prepare the financial statements on the goingernbasis unless it is not appropriate to prestiaethe
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping propeoacting records, which disclose with reasonabteigcy at
any time the financial position of the Company &ménable them to ensure that the financial statésreomply
with The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as ameritleely are also responsible for the system of mater
controls for safeguarding the assets of the Companyhence for taking reasonable steps for theepten and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors each confirm to the best of theirwlsalge that: the accounts have been prepared ordamce
with International Financial Reporting Standardsdsepted by the European Union, give a true andviaw of

the assets, Liabilities, financial position andfjirof the Company and the Chairman’s Statementestment
Manager’s report and note 4 ( Financial instrumeinisd associated risks ) to the financial stateménttude a
fair view of the developments and performance eflibsiness and the position of the Company, togetite a

description of the principal risks and uncertaisitieat it faces, as required by the Disclosure BEnachisparency
Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

By order of the Board

Christopher Fish Nicolas Wirz
Chairman irdator
26 April 2011



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Background and Highlights

A.1 Background

Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited (“the Companig’a closed-ended investment company registerdd an
incorporated under the laws of Guernsey on 3 Octabé6. The Company’s shares are listed and tradeate
Eurolist Market operated by Euronext Amsterdam bySE Euronext, and are subject to Dutch securities
regulations and to supervision by the relevant Bwtathorities. The Company is registered with thechb
Authority for the Financial Markets as a collectingestment scheme.

On 28 July 2008, the Company’s shares were alsati@dihto the Official List of the UK Listing Authdy and

to trading on the London Stock Exchange plc’s nmaarket for listed securities. At the time of thigatllisting,

the Company created a class of shares denominatetiling (the “Sterling Shares”) through the cersion of
existing Euro shares into new Sterling shareseapthvailing net asset value (“NAV”) per Euro shat&0 June
2008. Shareholders can convert their existing hgldif shares in the Company from one class intéhenalass
on a yearly basis, subject to satisfying certafjur@ments.

Through its investment in the flagship fund manabggdoussard & Gavaudan Asset Management, Sark Fund
Limited until 31 October 2010 and BG Fund Plc thefter which constitutes its main investment, tltempany

is sensitive to equity and volatility prices as Mad to credit spreads. The Company is exposethter onarket
factors but to a lesser extent.

From 1 January to 31 December 2010 (“the PerioB)ropean equity markets fell with the Dow Jones
Eurostoxx 50 at -5.8%.

Evolution of the DJ Eurostoxx 50 Index
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Graph 1 (source Bloomberg)

Volatility on stock markets was stable with the VRAndex ending at 19.1% from 20.8% and the VStamdeix
at 23.9% from 24.1%
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Evolution of the VDAX Index and the VStoxx Index
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Graph 2 (source Bloomberg)

Credit spreads were almost unchanged with theXt@mossover finishing at 437bps from 432bps.

Evolution of the Itraxx Crossover Index
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Graph 3 (source Bloomberg)

A.2 Highlights

As of 31 December 2010, the Company’s assets undeagement were approximately €683 million, down
from €690 million at 31 December 2009.
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

A.2.1 Performance

During the period, the performance of the Euro thiedSterling shares was as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 Variation
Euro share price €11.15 €9.85 +13.20 %
Euro share NAV €13.80 €12.38 +11.49%

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 Variation
Sterling share price £10.36 £9.47 +9.46%
Sterling share NAV £12.87 £11.75 +9.57%

Euro and Sterling share prices performed globalliine with global equity indexes such as the St68% and

the S&P 500.
BGHL euro share price vs. equity indexes
—— BGHL euro share price— Stoxx 600 index (rebased)— S&P 500 index (rebased)
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Graph 4 (source Bloomberg)
BGHL sterling share price vs. equity indexes
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Graph 5 (source Bloomberg)

! Amsterdam (AEX) market close for euro share
2 London (LSE) market close for sterling share
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

The Euro shares continued to outperform their NAWimg this period reflecting an improvement on past
underperformance. The Sterling share price perfdrimdine with its NAV.

BGHL euro share - net asset value vs. share price

—— BGHL net asset value— BGHL share price
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Graph 6 (source BGAM estimates / Bloomberg)

BGHL stering share - net asset value vs. share pe
BGHL sterling net asset value— BGHL sterling share price (rebased)
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Graph 7 (source BGAM estimates / Bloomberg)
A.2.2 Share buy back and discount to NAV

Share buy back programme
Since its listing, the Company has set up a shasetback programme approved in general meeting dy it

shareholders. The volume of the share buy backrgname during the Period shows the Investment Matsge
commitment to the Company’s strategy and its efftotreduce the discount to NAV
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Liquidity enhancement agreement

To increase the liquidity of the Company’s shatke, Company has set up a liquidity contract wittafex BNP
Paribas on 14 August 2008. Exane BNP Paribas hatitbeexecution of the liquidity enhancement agesarof
the Company in accordance with the Dutch acceptmdken practice. The Company intends to limit theoam
allocated to the execution of this contract to f%isomarket capitalisation per year.

Share buy backs from both programmes are accritigbareholders; they contribute to the outperforweaof
the Company’s net asset value with respect toadh8ark Fund and BG Fund combined.

Discount to NAV 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Euro share -19.2% -20.4%
Sterling share -19.5% -19.4%

Euro Share (discount and share buy back)

BGHL euro share - premium / discount to net assetalue
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Graph 8 (source BGAM estimates / Bloomberg)

BGHL euro share
Discount to NAV and share buy back programme
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Graph 9 (source BGAM estimates)
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Sterling Share (discount and share buy back)

BGHL sterling share - discount to net asset value
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Graph 10 (source BGAM estimates / Bloomberg)
BGHL sterling share
Discount to NAV vs. share buy back programme
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Graph 11 (source BGAM estimates)
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Investment Manager’s Report and Financial Highlighs
For the year ended 31 December 2010

B- Review of the development of the business

From 1 January to 31 October 2010, the Companyapadoximately 99% of its total assets investedaSark
Fund Limited (“Sark Fund”). Sark Fund, a Cayman based vehisle Europe-focused multi-strategy fund,
which aims primarily at arbitraging instruments twihon-linear pay-offs in special situations. SanndF
implements diversified investment strategies, idirlg volatility, equity and credit strategies.

On 31 October 2010, the Company redeemed its imeggtin Sark Fund and subscribed for sharéoinssard
& Gavaudan Fund Plc (“BG Fund”). From 1 November to 31 December 20i18¢ Company had
approximately 99% of its assets invested in BG Fwhéth is an Irish Qualified Investor Fund followirthe
same investment policy as that of the Sark Fund.

In addition to its investment in Sark Fund and tieBG Fund, and as described in the Company’sriofie
memorandum, the Company may enter iptivate equity investments.Since the credit banking facility was
terminated in early 2009, these investments hage fisanced through the Company’s equity.

Part of the cash allocated to the liquidity enhameet programme, which has not yet been used tdbhak the
shares of the Company, is invested by the liquidityvider in “BNP Paribas Cash Invest”, a pure nyomarket
fund distributed by a subsidiary of the BNP PariSasgroup.

C- Risks
C.1 Investments other than BG Fund Plc

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had the fatigwliree investments in the portfolio which représe
aggregate approximately 1% of the asset under nesmegf.

Rasaland

The Company entered into Rasaland in June 20081f@million. Rasaland is a Maltese company strectias

a private equity fund in terms of fees and orgaitsaand dedicated to investing in land, land depeient and
high-end resort developments in Mexico. The EUR/US{osure is hedged by an foreign exchange forward
which is rolled on a 3 months basis.

DSO Interactive

On 9 December 2009 and 19 February 2010, BGHL eadjia minority stake in DSO Interactive for a total
consideration of €1.7 million (6.18% of the shaapital and 5.33% on a fully diluted basis). DSCetattive is

a private company incorporated in France and headtered in Paris, where it employs over 122 pedp&O
Interactive provides debt collection services tomswomer creditors such as telecom operators, bands a
specialised credit institutions.

Compagnie des Minquiers - Cofigeo

On March 3rd 2011, Compagnie des Minquiers, a ndardymed subsidiary of the company held jointly witie
executive committee members of the Cofigeo Groag, dicquired 100% of MPF. MPF is a holding company
that owns 26,523 shares in Cofigeo, representipgoxpmately 36% of the share capital and 45% ofubing
rights of Cofigeo. On March 29th 2011, as a resf@ilthe MPF acquisition and in compliance with Fienc
securities laws, Compagnie des Minquiers, througtFivhas initiated a mandatory tender offer at 583@€all

the remaining shares of Cofigeo. In order to firmtiee MPF acquisition, the Company has subscribedHhares
and convertible bonds issued by Compagnie des NBnguThe cost of this investment for the Compasy i
approximately 18,2m€, representing approximately2of the Company’s net assets.
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C.2 Investmentin BG Fund Plc

Strategies

The flagship fund has three main strategies wharhbe split into the following sub-strategies.

Volatility strategies include:
» mandatory convertible bond arbitrage (“mandatojies”
» convertible bond arbitrage (including credit coride bonds)
» gamma trading
» warrant arbitrage

Equity strategies include:
» merger arbitrage
» special situations
> long / short trading

Credit strategies include:
» capital structure arbitrage
» credit long / short

In addition, the flagship fund has a fourth “Traglistrategy” with smaller risk allocations dedicatedshort-
term directional trading.

Risk and Capital allocation

Prime brokers, when providing financing and leverag hedge funds, take a risk that they assesg tis@ir
own methodologies. Risk measurement is achievethbyuse of haircuts. Haircuts reflect the levelriek
attributed by a prime broker to a position. Thehkigthe level, the higher the risk is. Accordinghs model,
an amount of equity, considered at risk, is alledathrough the use of haircuts to each positiochEaime
broker calculates its risk exposure to the sol¢igoof the flagship fund’s portfolio it holds irustody.

The Investment Manager replicates the methodolpgjied by prime brokers through a model, named itgqu
at risk”. This model, applied to the entire poribolis a proxy for the calculations of the primekers with a
conservative bias.

Haircuts condition the level of excess margin oencumbered cash which is the level of risk lefinirease
positions or enter into additional ones. An exaassgin of 25%, which corresponds to a 75% levedapdity at
risk, means that the flagship fund can theoretjdaltrease all of the positions in the portfolio dgyproximately
33% without having to raise further cash. The mautelides an estimation of the flagship fund’s pditd for
additional leverage across all its prime brokersceSs margin is a key indicator, used by the Imaest
Manager to monitor the solvency of the flagshipdiuA large level of excess is maintained at anytim

The “excess margin” corresponds to the remainimmacity the flagship fund can deploy without havingaise
additional cash. The Investment Manager intendbeovery selective when deploying equity at riskhwét
specific focus on liquid and short-term trades weiltalysts.

The flagship fund, which allocates its capital adang to the equity at risk, currently has a fawgll-balanced
allocation across the three main strategies.

At 31 December 2010, the equity at risk of the $laig fund stood at 52% of the capacity versus 57%la
December 2009.

The graphs below illustrate the evolution of theiiggat risk of the flagship fund since inceptiondathe
allocation of the equity at risk of the flagshimélacross strategies
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The equity at risk of the flagship fund (which w6 Fund as at 31 December 2010) was as follows:

BG Fund Plc - Equity at risk as of 31 December 2010
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Graph 14 (source Investment Manager estimates)
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D. Results

D.1 Results in private equity investments from 1anuary to 31 December 2010

At the end of December 2010, in accordance witkrirgtional Financial Reporting Standards (“IFR$&9th
investments were marked at acquisition prices whjgbroximate their fair value at reporting dateadspted by
the European Union.

Over the period, the contribution of private equityestment to the performance of the Fund has beeginal

D.2 Results in Sark Fund from 1 January to 31 Octioer 2010

The Company was 99% invested in Sark Fund fromnualy to 31 October 2010. The performance of Sark
Fund was as follows:

Fund 31 October 2010 31 December 2009 Variation
NAV per share

Euro Class A €169.43 €157.27 +7.73%
US Dollar Class $173.75 $160.81 +8.05%
Euro Class B €188.51 €169.78 +11.03%

All strategies contributed positively to the perfeamce of Sark Fund, volatility strategies beingrten driver,
followed fairly evenly by equity strategies andditestrategies. To a lesser extent, trading alsiquba positive
performance.

The contribution of each strategy to the perforneapicthe Euro Class A shares, which is the mosesmtative
of Sark Fund, is as follows:

Sark Fund Limted
Estimated performance contribution from 1 January © 31 October 2010 in bps
| | | |
|
Volatility Arbitrage |
. 1 1 1 1
| | | |
Equity strategies | ! ! ! !
. 1 1 1 1
| | | |
Credit Arbitrage | ! ! ! !
] 1 1 1 1
| | | |
Tradeg [N | | | |
| | | |
0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Graph 15 (source Investment Manager estimates)

Volatility strategies

Convertible bond arbitrage

This sub-strategy was the largest contributor t pierformance of Sark Fund, with gains primarilivein by
Sark Fund’'s low delta and credit sensitive posgjoimcluding the positions in Jazztel, Theolia dfattis
CASHES.

! Euro Class B bears no management and performaesewfhich explains this over performance. Managémen
and performance fees are charged at BGHL level.
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The Investment Manager completed the debt restingtwof Jazztel in the course of 2009. The company,
performing extremely well, released excellent Qautes 2010. The bonds have strong covenants, amagieed
at the operating company level, amortize and aeeil2013. They traded up in the market as a result

On Theolia, the Investment Manager had a key raking all phases of the debt restructuring. Thecessful
€60m capital increase, which closed the debt refsiring, was eventually 100% subscribed by shadssland
lifted the price of the company's convertible bgritlas enabling the Investment Manager to exitoibstion.

The Fortis CASHES position benefited on the onedhfram the global performance of the European Tier
market and on the other hand from the significaiperformance of beta products as investor demamnkigher
spreads rose with a softer rates market. The ImaygtManager took advantage of this to reduce dis@ipn, as
it was felt they were exhibiting too high a betheTinvestment Manager remains convinced by thestnvent
case and is happy to reduce the position in tiniggsetative) euphoria in order to increase it slibal market
stress appear.

The other credit sensitive convertible positiorss @ well as the high delta convertibles.

Whilst Sark Fund has had a lot of dry powder t@eaiew opportunities, it was the Investment Marager
perception that outright interest going forward Wounot be comparable with the extremely strong daina
witnessed in 2009 on the back of large inflowsdwectional convertible investments. The Investmdanager
therefore decided to take some profits and redoeceesof Sark Fund’s positions. The Investment Manage
decided to favour high delta convertibles (80%-88étta). To better hedge the credit risk of thessitjmms,
CDS’ have been bought allowing the Investment Manag capture all the gamma on the downside.

The European convertibles primary market was adiiviein a less lively fashion than the previousry&atal
issuance for the period amounted to approximatéBbé compared with €22.7bn for the full year 2008e
Investment Manager remained very selective andcgzated in very few deals as most of them wereghesl
and priced for outright accounts on less attraatieglit names. On the whole, the Investment Mandgknot
deem there to be significant value (on an arbitizags) in these new deals.

Mandatory convertible bond arbitrage
The mandatory convertible bond arbitrage sub-gisateas the second main contributor to the perforaanf

Sark Fund, with almost all of the positions conitibg positively

The UBS/BBVA mandatory exchangeable gained the mwikin this sub-strategy as the bond's discourfaito
value significantly reduced in a context of declopivolatility in the BBVA shares. Sark Fund alsméfited
from the dividend pass-through in the mandatoryBB¥A announced a slightly higher dividend than esied
by the market. The Investment Manager believesgbgstion is still very attractive. The Fortis maoky was
also an important contributor as the bond tradedesl to and at times even above fair value; thedtment
Manager therefore took the opportunity to progredgiexit the position with profit. The rest of tperformance
broke down evenly.

Even though prime brokerage conditions continue@dee, the Investment Manager remained rigorous and
selected trades with returns on equity based oseagwative funding costs and haircuts which wereirassl to
remain sustainable.

There was no mandatory convertible bond issue theeperiod. However, the European primary pipetivey
increase on the back of renewed M&A, with the mamdaproduct used to partly fund acquisitions wetiuity-
like funding. In addition financials and to a lessatent corporates still need to deleverage, aay timerefore
turn to the mandatories market to source quasitgedunding. Many European banks in particular lowkito
improve their capital ratios are considered adylibatential issuers.

Gamma trading

Despite the market continuing to react negativelthe news flow on uncertainties linked to soveareigk and a
potential double dip scenario, short-term realigettility did underperform the implied levels, aedrnings
surprises were not very common. The Investment ganpositioned the book in order not to suffer toach
from the absence of perceived or realised volgiititthe market with one of the lowest gamma posgifor the
portfolio towards the end of March.

Entering into April, the Investment Manager beliéwbat the sovereign uncertainty and contagiorsriskuld
result in a longer period of stress and volatilithe gamma profile was progressively increasedeonill
positioned to benefit from market volatility. Dugrthe summer season, the Investment Manager detidech
the books marginally long gamma as that periochefytear is often quiet. Long gamma was then ranupea
little in September in the hope of a more volatiterironment.
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At the end of the period, talk and anticipatiorQiE?2 largely prevailed sending implied volatilitieshistorically
low levels. In this environment, realised volaiil# were extremely low, keeping the markets rarment and
leaving little opportunities. In spite of the eargé season, anticipated moves across the board hige
Therefore the Investment Manager decided to keejotig gamma bias to a minimum.

This sub-strategy managed to post a positive dauttan to the performance of Sark Fund.

Corporate warrant arbitrage
This sub-strategy was almost flat during this perio

Equity strategies

Equity strategies were the second strategy dritimg performance of Sark Fund. Equity markets were
particularly volatile during the period. In this riricted market environment, Sark Fund was adbive no
major position was initiated. The Investment Mamagmtinued to be very selective with investmetits, focus
being on liquid trades with short maturities anthbyests.

At the start of the period, the market became drik®re by fundamentals with improved liquidity, itti@re
offering more attractive investment opportunitiékis enabled the Investment Manager to deploy ahpit
some long / short equity trades focused on largelignid names. But in May, increasing concernsarding the
sovereign risk and the economic recovery made mivestment Manager more cautious. As a result, & wa
decided to significantly increase the use of ogitmleverage positions around catalysts and taceethe risk

of the book.

Towards the end of the period, the Investment Mandgcided to redeploy capital selectively. Consetibout
macroeconomic data and the risk of a double dipate abated. On the micro side, the earnings sestsoted
with corporates reporting all in all very good riégsuln the meantime, corporate activity grew asr&sirope
with some attractive opportunities arising suchhastile bids, special situations, companies’ restmings,
primary and secondary placements. This enablednhestment Manager to position Sark Fund on a few
conviction trades on the one hand and to continerefiting from equity long/short trades with shitm
catalysts on the other hand.

The majority of the investors were out of equitbssan asset class during this period. As a coneequany
negative news had a marginal impact and volatiitythe downside looked floored. On the other haodijtive
news drove the market up as investors who were rim@sted chased it. Investors’ appetite seemed to
progressively pick up at the end of the period. @Weuncertainties still prevailed; the market waaiting for

the US mid-term elections to gain visibility at theginning of November.

Going forward, the Investment Manager is lookingdome stronger catalysts and opportunities to rozcaize
up trades with strict control of liquidity.

Credit strategies

Credit strategies returned a positive contributiorthe performance of Sark Fund, mostly driven liy ¢redit
long/short portfolio.

This period was eventful, with the fallout from tBeeek debt crisis having significant long-run imptions for
European markets. The Q1 earnings season for eersaad high yield issuers started with corporgeserally
reporting better than expected results, and a rdaekert by many to generate cash out of workingite and
reduce their indebtedness further. There were tleemtrinsic reasons to turn very bearish on tlag pf the
asset class. However, after the announcement @tthece bailout, global markets turned into downgwnode

in a very volatile environment. This occurred despexcellent earnings and an improving economic
environment in the US. The Investment Manager veawioced that credit was not a screaming “buy” elstors
were likely to continue reducing their exposuréhe asset class as a whole, as its risk/returnl@neés still not
particularly compelling despite investment gradel dngh yield spreads being back to Q3 2009 levels.
Uncertainty over financial reform in the US andHnrope, selling of Euro assets, and hedging of jiean
sovereign tail risk continued to weigh on Europearporate bonds with more or less discrimination.

As a consequence, the Investment Manager remaingtieocautious side over the period. It did notedje
from its stance of being theta neutral and haviak $und’s core investments hedged by longer camatingle-
name and index shorts (away from restructuringtesgias). The credit long/short book benefited frime
repricing of special situations throughout the stenm
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To a lesser extent, the capital structure bookoperéd well too. This sub-strategy benefited fromaro call at
the beginning of September that credit was attralstivalued vs. equities. At one point, the InvesttiManager
increased the number of positions reflecting thatvww Indeed, after the “European Sovereign Crigis'the

spring, the book was focused on very specific lorgglit/short equity micro situations. This macrdl bas since
been almost fully monetized.

In October, the Investment Manager remained bropdbitive for the very short term, as it was badig\then
that the market would continue to run with the ttefrom early September. In the medium term, theszee
fears that investors could become concerned tleapdticy settings (mainly QE2) would not delivemmadiate
improvements (both on the sustainable real econgmowth and real estate appreciation fronts in ti8).JThe
fear of potential contagion of peripheral sovereigaues within EMU weighed in favor of further tead
reductions within capital structure arbitrage adl a®long/short strategies.

Trading
Trading posted a positive performance across taedoduring the period.

D.3 Results in BG Fund from 1 November to 31 Decdmar 2010

The Company was 99% invested in BG Fund from 1 Ntoer to 31 December 2010. The performance of BG
Fund was as follows:

Fund 1 November 2010 31 December 2010 Variation
NAV per share
Euro Class A €100.00 €101.7016 +1.70%
US Dollar Class $100.00 $101.7362 +1.74%
Euro Class B €100.00 €102.3828 +2.38%

All strategies contributed positively to the perfance of BG Fund, volatility strategies being thamdriver,
followed by equity strategies, trading and cretiitegies.

For the period, the contribution of each strategthe performance of the Euro Class A shares, wikittie most
representative of BG Fund, was as follows:

BG Fund Plc
Estimated performance contribution from 1 November to 31 December 2010 in bps

0 20 40

Trading

Credit Arbitrage

60 80 100

Graph 16 (source Investment Manager estimates)

Volatility strategies

Convertible bond arbitrage

! Euro Class B bears no management and performaesewfhich explains this over performance. Managémen
and performance fees are charged at BGHL level.
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This sub-strategy posted a positive return durimg period. November was a difficult month for Ewrap
convertibles, in a context of rising risk aversamd investor fears with regards to mounting sogeréisues, but
BG Fund’s portfolio behaved very well since thedstment Manager had proactively reduced the highetst
positions. In December, market sentiment reversed BG Fund gained from its positions in balanced
convertibles which benefited from the strong suppdriong-only funds and the tightening in corperatedit
across the board.

Overall convertibles performed reasonably well urdpe last year on an arbitrage basis, as outhghing
interest pushed valuations higher, especially fgestment grade issuers or non-rated issuers pettas such.
The calendar actually provided limited gains oradritrage basis as issuers took advantage of it thr new
deals from long-only funds and therefore manageg@rice many new issues at the expensive end ofsterm
Whilst a key theme amongst market participants M&#\ activity, which was expected to result in adalital
performance thanks to the convertibles' changesafrol protections (the 'ratchets’), only one teati®n in
Europe actually triggered such a ratchet with tbguesition of Dana Petroleum by Korea National Odrp.
Other transactions disappointed as the ratchets martriggered (eg. Subsea, International Power).

Despite interest rates at record low levels, theofean convertibles market actually achieved pasitiet
supply in 2010. Primary issuance was relatively esbdvith approx. €15bn (through around 40 new ssue
priced in Europe) compared with redemptions of ado€13bn. By comparison, new issuance amounted to
around €23bn in Europe in 2009, up from around #1ihk2008. In 2011, the European convertibles ntaigke
expected to have fairly limited redemptions of appr€10bn, which should ensure some growth in the of

the European market, even assuming limited (agast standards) primary issuance. As was alreagly ise
2010, the Investment Manager also expects the glrathift in the profile of European CB issuers todgnon-
investment grade companies to continue.

In 2011 the Investment Manager also anticipatey irgeresting developments in the contingent cosioer
feature which was first introduced by Lloyds at #ved of 2009 (the so-called 'CoCos'). There areeatly

many discussions and workshops on the CoCo steugthich is also the subject of lively debates viadimking

regulators. The Investment Manager does not exqett CoCos to be issued in size before the secalfisbth
2011, as it is believed most potential issuers wiht to wait for the release of final guidelinegl aegulations
by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervison amdegulations to be enactdxy local bodies. Eventually,
this CoCo market could be much larger in size thaEuropean (classic) convertibles market.

Mandatory convertible bond arbitrage

This sub-strategy was the main driver in the penonce of BG Fund. The bulk of the gains came frieendng-
standing position in the UBS BBVA mandatory excheaige after the Spanish bank successfully closed it
€5.0bn rights issue. Whilst this triggered renewestor interest in that name, which supportedpttiee of the
mandatory, BG Fund also gained on its hedges. Aenulevel, this bond remains attractive from bathisk-
reward and a return-on-equity standpoint.

There was no new mandatory convertible bond issu&urope during this period and more generally in
2010. 2011 may be more interesting in terms of nesuance, as M&A transactions in the corporate
space may be funded with mandatories, and as dewelas in the financials space may also include
mandatory convertible instruments as a complemealternative to CoCos.

Gamma trading

Gamma trading contributed positively to the perfance of BG Fund. November has been a month of two
halves in the volatility space. While realised vitities remained relatively subdued and below ii@glin the
first half of the month, the picture could not hdeen more different after the November expiryeAfenewed
European macro and sovereign worries resurfaceith@iack of the Irish crisis, the European equitrkats
corrected by roughly 10% in two weeks and impliedsvspiked, especially in Financials. The correcttias
been rather orderly with smaller moves and henaksexl vol did not spike as much as the Investrivartager
might have expected given the absolute spot moee ttve period or the implied skew.

December was a “short” month and, in spite of tharterly expiry, interest was low and volumes -tipgtrolls
aside — were pretty thin. Leading market topicsenvas usual driven by China (luxury, cars, capit@bds,
commodities) and German names perceived as a safenhon the back of the European sovereign debt
weakness. Both realized and implied volatilitiegteld lower during the month, with very few prirdsid low
activity due to the holiday season. The Investmidanager kept the long gamma bias to a minimum in
anticipation of this typical trend which occurreafleer than usual this year.

Corporate warrant arbitrage
This sub-strategy was flat during this period.
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Equity strategies
At the beginning of the period, the Investment Mgeracontinued to be active on trades around resiiish

remained globally positive and decorrelated from thacro picture. Immediately at the end of the iagm
season, it was decided to significantly reduceritle of the portfolio by either hedging or reducipgsitions.
This move has been profitable to BG Fund as, shafter, the sovereign risk on peripheral Europeamtries
resurfaced with Ireland and drove the market ddwrhis constricted market, BG Fund did not losenmpand
even had the dry powder to deploy capital on adpportunities.

The market then rallied in December following tlkealution of the Irish debt crisis. This rally wadrsven by the
continuation of the trends witnessed earlier in year: luxury companies, German auto and more géper
cyclicals focusing on emerging market exposureveiy well whilst utilities performed poorly. In thicontext,
the Investment Manager continued to ride alongethesnds whilst special situations were much lighi@n
previous months. All in all, the Investment Managept limited risk in the equity book. With the fids mostly
driven by the macro and sector views, it was occedly difficult to have appropriate hedges for fhasitions
with comparables in each sector and therefore mjptiens were used to take directional bets.

The Investment Manager expects the stress on sguetisk to continue into the beginning of 2011.wéwer,
in a context of low interest rates and tight cregfiteads, the Investment Manager also anticipaeswed
interest in equity markets, especially the Europeeamkets, which have been largely neglected inréoent
inflows received by emerging and American equitykats.

Until the macro environment stabilises somewhatwhlecontinue to use options in order have moeithility
on the one hand and to protect the book when nesuéuk other.

Credit strategies
This sub-strategy contributed positively to thefpenance of BG Fund. Long/short positions and edpit

structure arbitrage performed equally during thesqul.

2010 was all about European sovereign risk, aninitdications on the European financial sector.e Timjority
of 2011 could well be spent in a highly volatilatst, until concerns about peripheral European siyerdebt
and bank recapitalizations die down.

Macro drivers continued to dominate through to ¢ne of the year. Cash bonds significantly undegperéd
CDS indices and single names. Given funding tessarer year end, the Investment Manager saw athiak
bond-CDS basis could move further into negativeittey (i.e. bonds cheapen vs. CDS curves). Overal
risk/reward in credit, both core and peripheryl &tibks unfavorable to BG Fund.

In this context, the Investment Manager continuedntrease the liquidity of the book and monetiegesal
situations where possible at attractive levels. E\av, several shorts were kept as the Investmenbalyer was
of the opinion that the entire®Iquarter of 2011 may not be as rosy as the majofitynarket participants

expected it to he

Trading
Trading contributed positively to the performané®6 Fund

E - Review of important events since the period end
Acquisition of MPF by Compagnie des Minquiers

On March 3rd 2011, Compagnie des Minquiers, a ndardyed subsidiary of the company held jointly witte
executive committee members of the Cofigeo Groags, dcquired 100% of MPF. MPF is a holding company
that owns 26,523 shares in Cofigeo, representipgoxpmately 36% of the share capital and 45% ofubing
rights of Cofigeo. As a result of the MPF acquisitand in compliance with French securities lanan@agnie

des Minquiers, through MPF, will initiate a mandattender offer for all the remaining shares ofigeb in the

first half of 2011. In order to finance the MPF aigifion, the Company has subscribed for shares and
convertible bonds issued by Compagnie des Minqui€h® cost of this investment for the Company is
approximately 13.8m€, representing approximatelydt¥e Company’s net assets.

The Investment Manager continues to be fully conadito the strategies of the Company. Financiasgpeots
will be linked to the level of opportunities credtacross the Company’s strategies in the Europegorate
environment.
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F - Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The equity at risk of BG Fund, which is the maimdstment of the Company, is expected to be deployed
very cautious way as the market environment remaimsertain described under the note 4 of financial
statements As the Company’s liabilities are veny,lthe liquidity risk is limited. Investments oth#ran BG
Fund are being financed through the Company’s gqather than using credit as there is currenthbaoking
facility in place.

G Related Party Transactions

There have been no related party transactions gltinig period except for transactions described utigenote
7 of the financial statements.

Emmanuel Gavaudan, Director of BGPL
as General Partner of BGAM, the Investment Manager
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of Bousard & Gavaudan Holding
Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Bods€aiGavaudan Holding Limited for the year ended 31
December 2010 which comprise the Statement of Cehgmsive Income, the Statement of Financial Positio
the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of GisaigEquity and the related notes 1 to 16. Thanfiral
reporting framework that has been applied in tipeaparation is applicable law and Internationalafizial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Earopnion.

This report is made solely to the company’'s membassa body, in accordance with Section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit workbegesn undertaken so that we might state to the anyp
members those matters we are required to stateeto in an auditor’s report and for no other purpo¥e the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accapassume responsibility to anyone other than timepemy and
the company’s members as a body, for our audit wWorkhis report, or for the opinions we have fexdn

Respective responsibilities of directors and audito

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Resporifies Statement, the directors are responsibie the
preparation of the financial statements and fomdpesatisfied that they give a true and fair viewurO
responsibility is to audit and express an opiniontlee financial statements in accordance with apple law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK andalnd). Those standards require us to comply with th
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards fodaors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the am®@nd disclosures in the financial statementficgerfit to

give reasonable assurance that the financial statesnare free from material misstatement, whethased by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment oftlaneghe accounting policies are appropriate toctirapany’s
circumstances and have been consistently appliddadequately disclosed; the reasonableness offisaymti
accounting estimates made by the directors; and\vbeall presentation of the financial statementsaddition,

we read all the financial and non-financial infotioa in the Annual Report to identify material imsistencies
with the audited financial statements. If we beeoamware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications farreport.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

» Give a true and fair view of the state of the conymaffairs as at 31 December 2010 and of itd tota
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

» Have been properly prepared in accordance with §&%Sadopted by the European Union; and

» Have been prepared in accordance with the requitenad the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Matters on which we are required to report by excepon

We have nothing to report in respect of the follogvi

Under the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we angrestjto report to you if, in our opinion:
» Proper accounting records have not been kept; or
» The financial statements are not in agreement thigreccounting records; or
» We have not received all the information and exgliems we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to revibe part of the Corporate Governance Statementnglat the
company’s compliance with the nine provisions & flune 2008 Combined Coslgecified for our review.

Andrew J Offen FCA

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Guernsey, Channel Islands

26 April 2011
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2010

2010 2009

Note Euro Euro
Assets
Non-current Assets
Investments at fair value through profit 6 709 4635 717,835,226
Current Assets
Foreign exchange forward derivatives contracts 3 169,351
Due from brokers 1,467,702 312,142
Total assets 710,927,337 718,316,719
Equity and Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Short Term Loan 12 6,000,000 5,500,000
Foreign exchange forward derivatives contracts 3 8,087 -
Due to brokers 282,265 288,482
Performance fees payable 9 18,413,773 19,370,343
Management fee payable 9 2,595,727 2,672,436
Interest payable 12 5,014 5,062
Administrative fee payable - 23,937
Audit fees payable 5,816 23,671
Legal fees payable 14,541 -
Total liabilities 27,755,183 27,883,931
Equity
Share Capital 10 4,934 5,588
Distributable reserve 150,726,170 -
Share premium 511,875,139 739,210,492

Treasury Shares

11  (20,863,074)

(31,477,788)

Retained Earnings 41,428,985 (17,305,504)
Total Equity 683,172,154 690,432,788
Total Equity and Liabilites 710,927,337 718,316,719
Net asset value per share:

Class A EURO shares outstanding 47,411,855 (2889:78,004) € 13.7990 €12.3770
Class A GBP shares outstanding 1,932,543 (20688)474) £12.8717 £11.7479

The financial statements were approved by the Boardf Directors on 26 April 2011 and signed on behalf

by:
Christopher Fish Nicolas Wirz
Chairman Director

The accompanying notes on pages 31 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Income

Net realised gain/(loss) on financial instrumernttaa value
through profit or loss

Change in unrealised (loss)/gain on financial insients at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gain on financials assets at fair value thropigtiit or loss

Realised and unrealised foreign currency (losd)amk loan

Realised and unrealised foreign currency (losg)/gaiforward
derivatives contracts

Other realised and unrealised foreign currency/fjass)

Interest income
Total income

Trading Expense
Interest expense
Company expenses
Performance fees
Management fees
Administrative fees
Directors fees
Professional fees
Audit fees

Other expenses
Total expenses

Net profit / Total Comprehensive Income

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Class A EURO €55,971,603 /50,714,974 shares(2009:
€128,035,848 Profit / 57,221,522 shares)

Class A GBP £2,001,885 /1,727,127 shares,(2X8922,576
Profit / 2,063,858 shares)

All activities are of a continuing nature.

Note

~N 0 © ©

2010 2009
Euro Euro
112,508,135 (12,626,950)
(24,354,262) 174,682,040
88,153,873 162,055,090
- (355,738)
(2,783) 2,468,072
5,887 (4,708)
88,156,977 164,162,716
4,205 15,481
88,161,182 164,178,197
42,129 121,694
18,413,773 19,370,343
10,393,016 9,980,154
112,909 119,980
117,500 117,500
1,105 98,341
21,566 (3,948)
324,692 229,567
29,426,690 30,033,631
58,734,492 134,144,566

€1.1037 €2.2375

£1.1591

£ 1.8037

The accompanying notes on pages 31 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Share Share Distributable Treasury Retained
Capital Premium Reserve Shares Earnings Total Equity
Euro Euro Euro Euro Euro Euro
Balance as at 1st
January 2010 5,588 739,210,492 - (31,477,788) ,30b/504) 690,432,788
Reclassification to
Distributable
reserve(note 10) - (439,995,600) 439,995,600 - - -
Reclassification
from Share
premium linked to
treasury shares - 212,660,247 (212,660,247) - - -
Net gain attributable
to ordinary shares 58,734,489 58,734,489
Treasury Shares
acquired - - - (65,995,123) - (65,995,123)
Treasury Shares
cancelled (654) - (76,609,183) 76,609,837 - -
Balance as at 31st
Dec 2010 4,934 511,875,139 150,726,170 (200583, 41,428,985 683,172,154
From 1st January 2009 to 31st December 2009
Share Treasury Retained
Capital Share Premium Shares Earnings Total Equity
Euro Euro Euro Euro Euro

Balance as at 1 st January 2009 6,394 785,523,000 (11,714,342) (151,450,070) 622,364,982
Net gain attributable to ordinary
shares/Total Comprehensive Income - - - 134,144,566 134,144,566
Treasury shares acquired - - (66,076,760) (667B05
Shares cancelled (806) (46,312,508) 46,313,314 - -
Balance as at 31st Dec 2009 5,588 739,210,492 A{3188) (17,305,504) 690,432,788

The accompanying notes on pages 31 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cashduseoperating activities:

Unrealised (gain)/loss on financial instrumentfaatvalue through profit

and loss

Realised loss/(gain) on financial instruments atvialue through profit

and loss

Realised and unrealised foreign currency (losg)/gaiforward
derivatives contracts

Increase in due from brokers

Decrease in due to brokers

(Decrease)/increase in performance fee payable
(Decrease)/increase in management fee payable
Decrease in interest payable
(Decrease)/increase in administrative fee payable
Decrease in audit fees payable
Increase/(decrease) in legal fees payable
Realised foreign currency loss on bank loan
Unrealised foreign currency (gain) on bank loan
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments at fair value through poofioss

Sales of investments at fair value
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Treasury shares acquired

Net cash flow from foreign exchange forward deiix@tontracts
Repayment of other short term loan

Proceeds from other short term loan

Proceeds from bank loan

Repayment of bank loan
Net cash used in financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of the period

End of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at December 2010

Supplementary information
Interest received
Interest paid

2010
Euro

58,734,492

24,354,262

(112,508,135)

2,783
(1,155,560)
(6,217)
,496p
6,709)
(48)
(23,937)
(17,855)
14,541

2009
Euro

134,144,566

(174,682,040)

12,626,950

(2,468,072)
(16,295)
(442,297)
19,370,343
7,367
(9,421)
23,937
(46,329)
(133,997)
512,011
(160,532)

(31,638,953)

(11,273,809)

(689,528,451) (1,187,500)
786,057,913 101,762,027
96,529,462 100,574,527

(65,995,123)

(66,076,760)

604,616 (3,446,488)
(56,800,000) (48,950,000)
57,300,000 54,450,000
- 17,956,875
- (43,234,345)
(64,890,507) (89,300,718)
4,205 15,481
42177 131,115

The accompanying notes on pages 31 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

1. General information
Company information

Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited (the “Companig’a closed-ended investment company registeréd an
incorporated on 3 October 2006, under the lawsu#r@sey. Since 3 November 2006 the Company’s shages
listed and traded on the Eurolist Market operatgdEbronext Amsterdam by NYSE Euronext. Prior to the
listing of the Company, there was not a public reaifer the shares. Upon listing and trading of shares on
Euronext Amsterdam and, as a result, the Compaswhifect to Dutch securities regulations and teestipion

by the relevant Dutch authorities. The Companyegistered with the Dutch Authority for the Finarcia
Markets as a collective investment scheme.

On 28 July 2008, the Company’s shares were alsdttadinto the Official List of the UK Listing Authdy and
to trading on the London Stock Exchange plc’s nmarket for listed securities. Upon admission to@iécial
List of the UK Listing Authority and, as a resute Company is subject to the UK Listing Author&yisting,
Prospectus, Disclosure and Transparency Rules,velaeee Dutch securities regulations take precedence

At the time of this dual listing, the Company hasated a class of shares denominated in Sterlweg“8terling
Shares”) through the conversion of existing Eurareb into new Sterling shares at the prevailingassét value
(“NAV") per Euro share at 30 June 2008. From thased shareholders have been able to convert tkistire
holding of shares in the Company from one class amother class first on a quarterly and now ommmual
basis, provide that the procedure published ordimepany’s website has been compiled with.

Investment policy

The Company will invest its assets in order todlian exposure to multiple alternative investnwrdategies.
Boussard & Gavaudan Asset Management, LP (the Stnvent Manager”) is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company's investments.

The Company will seek to achieve its investmeneotiye by investing the proceeds of any fund raisiret of
any amounts retained to be used for working capéuirements, into Boussard & Gavaudan Fund Rbe(“
“Fund” or BG Fund”), and by utilising its borrowirgpwers to make leveraged investments into priegtéty
situations. The gross investment exposure of theamy at any time may represent a maximum of 206epé
of Net Asset Value at the time of investment.

The Company will invest in a separate class of Elewominated shares of the Fund which will not ldgect

to management fees and performance fees at the lwed as the Investment Manager will receive
management fees and performance fees in respistrofe as Investment Manager of the Company. dfoee,
the Company will benefit from exposure to the nuldtistrategies offered by the Fund but with no ipigt
layering of fees.

Over time, a proportion of the net assets of then@any may, at the discretion of the Investment Manabe
invested in other hedge funds and/or other findrasaets within the limits set out under the hegdisset
allocation " below and subject to the limit on fbgerage set out under the heading "Gearaitw, provided
that, where such hedge funds are managed by tlestinent Manager, the Company will invest throughare
class which will not be subject to management ofopmance fees at the level of the underlying hefdige.

The Investment Manager may also use the Compamyt®Wwing facilities to enable it to make privateugy
investments at its discretion within the limits smit under the heading "Asset allocation” below.e Th
Investment Manager’s ability to use borrowings $oich purposes is subject to the limit on leverageosit
under the heading "Gearing" below. Such investmemy include the acquisition of minority or majgrit
interests in unlisted companies or listed compa(iibgect Investments"). The Investment Manager raisp
make private equity investments through investingfunds that have a private equity investment focus
("Indirect Private Equity Investments").

With the possible application of leverage and wtaden with the returns achieved from the Fund, shwents
other than the investment in the Fund as descabege are intended to allow the Company to achisvarget
annualised return. The Company’s investments iretasether than the Fund are expected to consist of
investment opportunities that are identified by btheestment Manager in connection with its andaff#liates
current activities but which are not pursued by fumd due to risk profiles or liquidity profilesdonsistent
with those of the Fund.
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

1. General information (continued)

Gearing

As described above, the Company intends to makeofises borrowing facilities to allow it to have an
investment exposure of up to 200 per cent. of NssteAValue at the point of investment.

The Company has power under its Articles of Incomgion to borrow up to an amount equal to 100 jgeit.cof
its Net Asset Value as at the time of borrowing.

It is intended that leverage will be used by thenBany for the purposes of (i) managing day to deshdlow,
i.e. for meeting expenses of the Company and fodifig repurchases of Shares and (ii) leveragingstnaents
made by the Company, including its investment enFland or in other hedge funds managed by the timezs
Manager (hereafter, “Manager Funds”), provided thatCompany compiles with the exposure limitatieas
out under the heading “Asset allocation” below.

Asset allocation

Investments in Manager Funds
Substantially all of the net assets of the Companeycurrently invested in the Fund and it is apttéd that a
significant proportion of the Company’s net assdgtsremain invested in the Fund.

Over time, no less than 90 per cent of the Net Agakie and no more than 110 per cent of the NeeA¥alue
will be invested in Manager Funds, with at leasp80 cent. of the Net Asset Value invested in thed-

Investments in assets other than Manager Funds
In relation to those investments in assets othan tdanager Funds, the Directors have determinedstih
investments shall not exceed certain limits:

Direct Investments
The aggregate value of Direct Investments may rRoeed an amount equal to 50 per cent. of the NeetAs
Value at the time of making any such investment.

Indirect Private Equity Investments

The aggregate value of Indirect Private Equity Bimeents may not exceed an amount equal to 25 péerafe
the Net Asset Value at the time of making any simelestment. In addition, the Company will not maiwey

single private equity investment representing icess of an amount equal to 10 per cent. of itsAdset Value
as at the time that investment is made. Privaté@emvestments made in linked transactions willdagregated
for the purposes of this calculation.

Hedge fund investments (other than Manager Funds)

The Directors have also determined that the Conipanyestments in hedge funds (other than Managed§)
when aggregated may not exceed an amount equéal per2cent. of the Net Asset Value at the time akimg
any such investment.

Diversification

The Company's investment policy will be diversifieg exposure to the investment strategies of thedFu
through the Company's investment in the Fund amduth the other leveraged investments made by the
Investment Manager as described above.

Close Fund Services (the “Administrator”) arranfggsthe monthly publication of the NAV of the Compaas
at the end of the previous month and the Investikamager provides daily estimates.

As of 31 December 2010 none of the Company andFthed currently had any employees or owned any
facilities.
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2. Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have beaepaped in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EuropeamUtiBRS”) and with legislation and rules pertaigito
Amsterdam Euronext and London Stock Exchange listechpanies, as well as in accordance with The
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended.

Standards and interpretations effective for annuaperiods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 not havig
material impact on the Company Financial Statements

IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements (Relise

IFRS 3: Revised - Business Comninations

IAS 27: Consolidated and Separate Financial Stat&s{@&mendment)

IAS 28: Investments in Associates (amendment)

IAS 31: Interest in Joint Ventures (Amendment)

IAS 38: Intangible Assets (Amendment)

IAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meament-Eligible Hedged Items (Amendment)
IFRIC 17: Distribuitions of Non-cash Assets to Owse

Standards and interpretations effective for annuaperiods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 not
having material impact on the Company Financial Steements

IFRS 2: Share-based payments (Amendment)

IFRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Disoored Operations (Amendment)
IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements (Relise

IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows

IAS 17: Leases (Amendment)

IAS 36: Impairment of Assets (Amendment)

IAS 39: Financial instruments: Recognition and nieasient (Amendment)

Standards and interpretations effective for annuaperiods beginning on or after 1 February 2010 not
having material impact on the Company Financial Steements

IAS 32: Presentation (Amendment)
IFRIC 19: Extinguishing Financial Liabilities witBquity Instruments

Standards and interpretations effective for annuaperiods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 not
having material impact on the Company Financial Steements

IFRS 1: First time Adoption of International FingddReporting Standards
IFRIC 14: Prepayments of a minimum Funding RequéeniAmendment)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared ostarical cost basis except for financial assetsl laglfair
value through profit or loss that have been meakatéair value.

The same accounting policies, presentation and odstlof computation are followed in these financial
statements as those followed in the preparatidgheCompany’s annual financial statements for pneviyears.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith IFRS requires management to make judgement,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoumtthe financial statements and accompanying notes.
Management believes that the estimates utilisqateparing its financial statements particularlyhwieéference

to the valuation of unquoted investments basedhenatudited NAV or management judgement applied are
reasonable and prudent. However, actual resultisl cbiffer from these estimates.
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements are mmeas using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which company operates (‘the funwilocurrency’). The functional currency is Euro,iebh
reflects the Company’s primary activity of investiim Euro denominated securities. The Company Haptad
the Euro as its presentation currency. Foreigneogly transactions are translated into the functionerency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the datélseofransactions. Foreign exchange gains anddasselting
from the settlement of such transactions and frbenttanslation at period-end exchange rates of tapne
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign awies are recognised in the Statement of Comprélens
Income. Translation differences on non-monetamn@dneld at fair value through profit or loss arpared as
part of the fair value gain or loss.

Investments at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets are designated by managemernit aftfae through profit or loss at inception as greup of
assets is managed and its performance is evalaaie fair value basis in accordance with the comigan
investment strategy and information about the itmest is provided to the board of Directors on thesis.

Investment transactions are accounted for on & tate basis. Investments are initially recognatedir value
excluding attributable purchase costs. Investmam@subsequently carried at fair value determibgdhe
Valuation Agent, GlobeOp Financial Services Limjtatithe un-audited NAV of the Fund on a monthlgiba

Changes in the fair value of investments are reznbid the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Recognition/derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognistrge drade date - the date on which the Companynits
to purchase or sell the investment. Investmentslarecognised when the rights to receive cash ffoova the
investments have expired or the Company has tnaedfsubstantially all risks and rewards of owngrsh
Taxation

The Company has been granted exemption under tioen Tax (Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinance, 1989
from Guernsey Income Tax, and is charged the aniegabf £600 (2009: £600) As a result, no providion
income taxes has been made in the financial staisme

Income and expenses

Other income is recognised in the Statement of Gehgnsive Income as it occurs on an accrual basis.
Expenses are accounted for as they occur on ameacbasis. Expenses are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Interest income and expense

Interest income, arising on cash and interest esgearising on overdrafts, borrowed debt securities
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incaitién interest income and interest expense uslireg
effective interest method.

Basic earnings per share, and NAV per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divitiegnet income by the weighted average numbezgi$tered
shares in issue, during the period. There is rfergifice between the basic and diluted earningshzee.

Net Asset Value per share is calculated by dividhmynet assets at the Statement of FinancialiBoslate by
the number of shares outstanding at the Statenfiérib@ncial Position date.

Share issue cost

Share issue costs have been borne by the Invesiaaager.
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Short term loan

Short term loans are carried at amortised coserdsts paid on loans are recognised in the Stateofen
Comprehensive Income within interest expense usiegffective interest method.

Treasury shares

When the Company purchases its own equity instrisn@reasury shares), they are deducted from eqhiy
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on plechase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Cogipawn
equity instruments.

Forward currency contracts

A forward currency contract involves an obligattonpurchase or sell a specific currency at a futlaee, at a
price set at the time the contract is made. Forviiareign exchange contracts are valued by referémdbe
forward price at which a new forward contract oé t)ame size and maturity could be undertaken at the
valuation date. The unrealised gain or loss on dpamard currency contracts is calculated as tlitemdince
between the contract rate and this forward prind,ia recognised in the Statement of Comprehersoame.

Operating segments

The Company has adopted IFRS 8, ‘Operating segimastsf 1 January 2009. The new standard requires a
‘management approach’, under which segment infaomas presented on the same basis as that used for
internal reporting purposes. The Board is of thewvithat the Company is engaged in a single segofent
business, being investment in financial instruments

The Board, as a whole, has been determined asitatingt the chief operating decision maker of thentpany.

The key measure of performance used by the Boamssess the Company’s performance and to allocate
resources is the total return on the Company'sasset value, as calculated under IFRS, and therefor
reconciliation is required between the measurerofitpor loss used by the Board and that contaimethe
financial statements.

The majority of the Company’s investments are i Bund which is domiciled in the Republic of Iredaihe
Company is domiciled in Guernsey.

3. Fair value of financial instruments

In accordance with IFRS, fair value is defined lzs price that would be received to sell an assqtaod to
transfer a liability (i.e. the “exit price”) in aorderly transaction between market participante tiree levels
of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for idstinvestments that the Company has the abiitgdcess.

Level 2 — valuations based on other significanteobsble inputs (including quoted prices for similar
investments, interest rates, prepayment speedtit dsk, etc.) or quotes from inactive exchanges.

Level 3 — valuations based on significant unobdgevinputs (including the Company’s own assumptions
determining the fair value of investments).

The valuation techniques used by the Company tesunedair value during the year ended Decembe2@10
maximized the use of observable inputs and minichthe use of unobservable inputs.
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following is a summary of the inputs used tugaghe Company’s net assets as of December 30; 201

Fair Value Measurements at December 31,2010

Quoted Prices in Significant
Total Fair Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Description Value Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
€ € € €
Financial assets
Investments in securities
Investment in BG Fund 698,306,497 - 698,306,497
Private equity deals 11,014,935 - 11,014,935
Money market fund 138,203 138,203 -
709,459,635 138,203 - 709,321,432
Derivative contracts, at fair value
Forward currency contracts (438,047) - (438,047 -
Total 709,021,588 138,203 (438,047) 709,321,432
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2009
Quoted Prices in Significant
Total Fair Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Description Value Identical Assets  Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
€ € € €
Financial assets
Investments in securities
Investment in Sarkfund 708,929,113 - - 708,929,113
Private equity deals 8,166,332 - - 8,166,332
Money market fund 739,781 739,781 - -
717,835,226 739,781 - 717,095,445
Derivative contracts, at fair value
Forward currency contracts 169,351 - 169,351 -
Total 718,004,577 739,781 169,351 717,095,445

Changes in investments measured at fair value for lich Level 3 inputs have been used

Financial assets Non listed equities Private equitgeals Total
€ € €
Balance as of December 31, 2009 708,929,113 8,166,332 717,095,445
Total gains and losses (realized and
unrealized) 87,677,385 475,486 88,152,871
Purchases 687,155,334 2,373,117 689,528,451
Sales (785,455,335) - (785,455,335)
Balance as of December 31, 2010 698,306,497 11,014,935 709,321,432
Changes in investments measured at fair value for lich Level 3 inputs have been used
Financial assets Non listed equities Private equitgeals Total
€ € €
Balance as of December 31, 2008 647,842,523 7480,0 655,022,565
Total gains and losses (realized and
unrealized) 162,245,357 (201,210) 162,044,147
Purchases - 1,187,500 1,187,500
Sales (101,158,767) - (101,158,767)
Balance as of December 31, 2009 708,929,113 8,386,3 717,095,445

There were no transfers between levels in the gerio
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Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

3. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 3 investments are fair valued by the InvestinManager’s portfolio management team using aetaiof
techniques including discounted cash flows andipldrslvate company comparables. Instruments areedhin
the risk management system which is fed by reak tmmrket data in order to price the portfolio. Some
instruments such as, but not limited to, derivatiaee priced by using in house plugged in modéie. dystem
calculates profits and losses as well as net agdaes. Inputs are used in applying the variousiatédn
techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions ket participants use to make valuation deossio
including assumptions about risk. Inputs may inelpdice information, spot and volatility pricestdrest rate,
credit and foreign exchange levels, default proligds, liquidity factors as well as other data.

Each level 3 valuation is documented. This docuatent is updated and reviewed monthly by the Investt
Manager's Valuations Committee. The Directors heaxdewed the Level 3 valuations and are satisfied t
they fairly represent the value of the assets bglthe Company as at 31 December 2010.

The Investment Manager seeks to achieve the Corspamwgstment objective principally by investing stof its
net assets in the Fund and by investing its remginiet assets in other financial instruments. Thenany is
exposed to various types of risk which are assediafth the financial instruments and markets inctlit invests.
As a consequence, an effective and rigorous riskagement is central to the operation of the busines

Given the significance of the exposure to the Fuhd,risk management principles applied by the dtment
Manager when managing the Fund are described hdreun

In August 2010, the Company had invested €5,1@0ertapital of Compagnie des Minquiers and advaadedn
of €1,870,677. As at 31 December 2010, the cotistitwf Compagnie des Minquiers had not yet beealified.
Compagnie des Minquiers has not been consolidatéide Company’s financial statements at year entha
impact would not have been material.

4. Financial instruments and associated risks
(8 Risk management policy

The Investment Manager has established a sepaisktdviRnagement Unit which reports to the Chief Exize
Officer ("CEQ”). Risks and responsibilities areispletween the Quantitative Risk Management tearichwis in
charge of market risk and the Qualitative Risk Mgement team which is in charge of counterparty and
operational risk.

A Risk Management Committee oversees the Risk Mamagt Unit. The committee formally meets on a weekl
basis to review the exposures of the Company deddecisions regarding risk and performance.

Exposures are calculated from a risk managemetgmyahich is third party proprietary software paerd by a
leading risk & portfolio management solution praidThe system provides extensive real time inftionaon the
Company’s as well as on the Fund’s exposures amitsliThe system provides sensitivities and cateslatress-
tests scenarios. The open architecture of the myattows the Investment Manager to create speuificouse
reports for risk management purposes.

Through a rigorous investment process the Investrivamager carefully identifies and assesses rigkeré
investing.

The Investment Manager seeks to achieve the ineestabjective of the Fund by arbitraging linear aod-linear
instruments that can be exchange-traded or overeheter, derivatives or non derivatives. The |twesnt
Manager may use derivative financial instrumentsrfeestment purposes or to hedge against fluctostin the
relative values of the Fund’s portfolio positiofiie investments of the Company as well as the imagss of the
Fund are subject to normal market fluctuationstarttie risks inherent to investment in securitied there can be
no assurances that appreciation will occur. Thaevaf financial instruments can increase as wetleasease and
investors may not realise their initial investmentthe disposal of their investments.

The main types of financial risk to which the Compas exposed to anmarket risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk.

The Company is - to a lesser extent - exposed &vatipnal risk which is monitored by the QualitatiRisk
Management team. As part of its corporate govemdne Investment Manager has ensured strict sepait
duties between finance, administration, operatiegal & compliance, internal control, technologydarisk
management functions. All the units report to tHeOC Some middle and back office functions are autsed to
the administrator.
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4. Financial instruments and associated risks (etinued)
(b) Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk directly fritwm investments it makes and indirectly as a trexfuthe
types of investments that the Fund makes. Mark#t ig the risk that the fair value or future cakiwé of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changesnarket variables.

Both the Company and the Fund take significant ptarisk exposure from the investments they makeewh
assessing market risks the Investment Manager ale@ybines:

- amacroeconomiqortfolio levelwith amicroeconomicposition specificapproach
- quantitativemeasuresvith qualitativeassessments

- alocal risk measurement which captures the impadtnoted marketmoveswith stress scenariot/pe
measurements which captutagge market moves

The Investment Manager has also replicated the imws#el by the prime brokers to apprehend the Furigks
Given that prime brokers are the financing andriege providers of the Fund, their view of the iiskentral to
the Investment Manager and so is the consequeraeyafestriction they may take. Their measure st an
independent risk measurement.

Macroeconomic risk

Macroeconomic risk is defined as the risk havingide ranging effect on thentire portfolioor on a significant
portion of it. It results from exogenous eventshsas economic changes, geopolitical uncertaingeoeral market
disruptions.

Quantitative analysis

For limited markeimoveghe Investment Manager assesses exposure by @ssiy sensitivity factor6Greeks”)
mainly to equity, credit, interest rate and foregchange. Greeks are used for real time portfaitging.

For extreme market variationstress scenarioare run to measure the impact, on the portfofi@ large panel of
market situations. Scenarios, which stress allsypfemarket data, are produced daily and can bergtd on
demand. To apprehend convexity, each scenarioresqai full recalculation of the portfolio. The rejsoallow
looking at risks from the portfolio level down intach strategy, sub-strategy, trade and finallyviddal
instrument in order to identify the main contritngtdo losses. A “trade” generally means a comtonatf
financial instruments which contribute to the sarigitrage. Scenarios are graduated from levelSlvith level 5
scenarios bearing the largest shocks. Level 3 osrare tested against our tolerance limits agder adjustment
of the portfolio when limits are breached.

Results are checked daily by the front office dr@duantitative risk management. Given the norafimature of
the portfolio and the wide range of instruments stnategies used, stress scenarios calculatiomsh®an judged
more accurate than value at risk calculations.

A wide range of reports are also produced to monétxposures and concentrations of riskHhat-if type
scenarios”as well as othetisk indicatorswhich aggregate all type of exposures in differgays are scrutinised.

A non aggregated vision, focusing on nominal andiotional amounts, is also used to track excessive
concentrations of risk.

Qualitative analysis

The qualitative assessment will focushard to measuresks such as potential changes in liggidity of various
underlying financial instruments. Small and midssdpvered positions as well as speculative (crofvgesitions
entailing a hedge fund liquidation risk are exarmpié positions exposed to liquidity changes. Thalitative
approach may require exchange of information witliket participants to get a better feel of the garstuation.

Microeconomic risk

Microeconomic risk is defined as the risk applyioga specific “trade” positionin the portfolio and one of its
main components is thidiosyncratic riskwhich measures the risks applyingdiee single issueron whom the

Company or the Fund have exposure. Idiosyncraic can assess events such as bankruptcy, takedaamrd

offers, credit rating changes or any other credéné Idiosyncratic risks are identified in the iden-making

phases before the investments takes place andydbgrinvestment’s life.

Quantitative analysis

Forlimited markemoveghe Investment Manager assesses exposure by bsi@gyéeks by issuer.
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(b)  Market Risk (continued)

For extreme market variationsrash testdy issuer are run. The scenario which aims atsasggthe bankruptcy
of an issuer aggregates all the positions of thaamy and of the Fund by issuer and then appliesrag shocks
which magnitude depend on each financial instruntygoe contributing to the trade and on their recpvate
which themselves depend on the seniority of instmnis

Qualitative analysis

Qualitative analysis contemplates many events ssctegulatory changes, changes in the managemeatsou
liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that th€ompany will encounter difficulty in meeting ohkdiipns associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by daiing cash or another financial asset. It alsonsiglae ability of the
Company to unwind a specific trade in a reasonsibieframe. Liquidity has, by definition, an idiosyatic
component, but, as seen, it also varies accordingacroeconomic conditions.

I ndependent risk measurement (Equity at risk and Unencumbered cash)

Prime brokers, when providing financing to hedgedfy take a risk that they assess using their own
methodologies. Even though each prime broker bamsaih risk measure, approaches tend to be quitlasasross
them. Risk measure is achieved by the use of HairElaircuts reflect the level of risk attributegldprime broker

to a position. The higher the level, the higher ttisk is. The models take into account, to a laegtent, the
benefits of hedging by applying specific haircut aretting effect to hedged positions. Under thiddehpan
amount of equity, considered at risk, is allocatedugh the use of haircuts to each position. Eathe broker
calculates its risk exposure to the sole portiothefFund'’s portfolio it holds in custody.

The Investment Manager replicates the methodolpglied by prime brokers through a model, narkedity-at-
risk. The model, applied to thentire portfoliq is a proxy to the calculations of the prime brskeith a slight
conservative bias. Equity-at-risk calculationsrameevery night and reconciled against the prinaddrones.

Haircuts condition the level dixcess Margiror Unencumbered Caslvhich is the level of risk spare to increase
positions or enter into additional ones. An Exddssgin of 25%, which corresponds to a 75% leveEqbiity-at-
Risk, means that the Fund can theoretically iner@dlsof the positions in portfolio by approximat@5% without
having to raise further cash. The model allowseating the Fund’s potential for additional leverageoss all its
prime brokerslnencumbered Cash is a key indicatased by the Investment Manager to monitorsthieencyof
the Fund. A large level of excess is maintainedrst time. The Investment Manager secures contigctiiee
excess margin of the Fund by signing Term Margimeggents with its prime brokers. These agreemdints a
freezing haircut levels over a pre-agreed perioghue.

The Equity-at-risk allocated to each trade is usechlculate the return on equity which is theorased to assess
the profitability of a trade.

(i) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of changes in the falues of equities or equity-linked financial timenents as the
result of changes in the levels of equity indiced the value of individual shares. Equity pricd #xposure arises
from the Company’s investments in equity securiied in the Fund.

The Company takes significant equity price riskasyre from the investments it makes.
The table below shows the Company’s exposure tsg @éfinancial assets:

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

As at December % of As at December % of
31,2010 Investments 31,2009 Investments
€ €

Investments in BG Fund Cost:
2010:€682,054,502 698,306,497 98.43% - -
Investments in SARK Fund Cost:
(2009:€£667,853,983) - - 708,929,113 98.76%
Investments in Private equity deals Cost:
2010:€9,911,013 (2009: €7,537,896) 11,014,935 1.55% 8,166,332 1.14%
Investment in money market fund Cost:
2010:€135,928 (2009: £€730,893) 138,203 0.02% 739,781 0.10%
Total 709,459,635 100.00% 717,835,226 100.00%

39



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

4. Financial instruments and associated risks (etinued)
(b) Market Risk (continued)

The Company invested in three private equity inwestts which are being valued at their estimatedviue.
Overall, the weight of the private equity type istraents in the portfolio has increased from 1.1d%.55%.

At 31 December 2010, should the price of the Fumdi é&vestments other than the Fund have
increased/decreased by 10% with all other variabd@saining constant, the effect on increase/deeréas
profit and loss for the year and on net assetsdvmsgult in an increase/decrease of approximatéyd5,964
(2009: €71,783,523).

The Company is exposed to risks associated wittetfeets of fluctuations in the prevailing level roarket
interest rates on its Statement of Financial Ros#ind Statement of Cash Flows. Interest ratearisks from the
possibility that changes in interest rates willeafffuture cash flows or the fair value of finahérestruments.
Volatility in interest rates could make it morefitifilt or expensive for the Company to obtain daiEncing, and
could negatively cause the prices of long or spositions to move in directions not initially argpiated and
could decrease the returns that the Company’stimezgs generate.

The Company has entered into an intra month intdsearing advance agreement with the Fund for the
purposes of financing its share buybacks. The Comferrows money under the advance agreement with
maturities up to one month. As a consequence, tmpany has exposure to short term interest réteans
more specifically to an increase in short termgate

(ii) Interest rate risk

Over the year, the Company has borrowed money iia &ua rate that has ranged from 1.904% and 2.35%.

The Company has been benefited by the decrea$mufterm interest rates on the market.

An increase by 1% of short term rates will incretts® Company’s cost of borrowing, and accordinghg
profit and loss for the year and the net assetsEUR 60,000 based on the position at the end 00201
compared to EUR 55,000 based on the position aribleof 2009.

(iii) Foreign currency risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk the fair valuefature cash flows of a financial instrument wilidtuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The functional and presentational currency of thenfany is Euro. As a result, the investments treitarried

as assets in the respective financial statememsstted in Euros. When valuing investments that ar
denominated in currencies other than the Euro,Gbenpany is required to convert the values of such
investments into Euros based on prevailing exchaatgs as of the end of the applicable accountargpg.
The Company is mainly invested in the Fund which fsnd denominated in Euro on which the Comparsy ha
no direct exposure to the foreign exchange riskvéler the Company has indirect foreign exchangesue

to the investments of the Fund.

The Company uses forward foreign exchange contreittsmaturities of less than three months to hetthge
sterling share class exposure in order to givehéosterling shareholders the Sterling equivalerthefEuro
performance. The Company uses forward foreign exghaontracts with maturities up to three months to
hedge its three private equity investments whiehdemominated in foreign currencies.

Forward contractsare commitments either to purchase or sell a dasigl financial instrument, currency,
commodity or an index at a specified future dateaf@pecific price and may settle in cash or andihancial
asset. Forwards are individually traded over-thenrter contracts. Forward contracts result in crexitosure to
the counterparty. Forward contracts result in exp®m$o market risk based on changes in market priglative
to contracted amounts. Market risks arise due ¢opthssible movement in foreign currency exchanggesra
indices, and securities’ values underlying thestrimments. In addition, because of the low margpodits
normally required in relation to notional contraites, a high degree of leverage may be typicdbufard
trading account. As a result, a relatively smalt@rmovement in an underlying of a forward contraety
result in substantial losses to the Company. Fatwantracts are generally subject to liquidity ridkprices
fluctuate during a single day’s trading beyond ¢héimits, the Company could be prevented from pribynp
liquidating unfavourable positions and thus cowdshbject to substantial losses. Notional amounts
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(b) Market Risk (continued)

(iii) Foreign currency risks (continued)

are the underlying reference amounts to stock exgiindices equities and foreign currencies upoichvthe
fair value of the forward contracts traded by trmmpany are based. While notional amounts do notsemt
the current fair value and are not necessarilycatiie of the future cash flows of the Company’snard
contracts, the underlying price changes in relatiothe variables specified by the notional amouaifitsct the
fair value of these derivative financial instrungent

Forward foreign exchange contracts settle on @asis, the net amounts payable at 31 December 286
€617,513 (2009: €345,572 receivable).

The table below summarises the Company’s exposui@¢ign currency risks:

Amount Stated in EURO
31 December 2010

GBP USD
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - 7,454,318
Due from brokers 953 -
Foreign exchange forward derivatives contracts - (7,454,342)
Net FX exposure of the portfolio 953 (24)
- Foreign exchange forward to hedge the GBP sHass c 28,590,695
Net FX Exposure of the Company including hedge of thGBP class 28,591,648 (24)

Amount Stated in EURO
31 December 2009

GBP usb
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - 6,978,832
Due from brokers 83 -
Foreign exchange forward derivatives contracts - (6,978,854)
Administrative Fee Payable (23,937) -
Net FX exposure of the portfolio (23,854) (22)
Foreign exchange forward to hedge the GBP shars clas 19,773,459 -
Net FX exposure of the Company including hedge ohe GBP class 19,749,605 (22)

The following table provides an analysis of theseffof a 5% strengthening in the reporting curreagginst

each of the relevant foreign exchange currenciesyraing all the other variables remain constamegative

amount in the table reflects a potential net rédaadh the profit and loss for the year and omit$ assets, while
a positive amount reflects a net potential increlgbe reporting currency weakened by 5% it woléve had
the equal but opposite effect, on the basis thatlér variables remain the same.

31 December 2010 GBP uUsD
Change in currency rate in % 5% 5%
Effect on profit and loss and net assets 48 (2)
31 December 2009 GBP uUsD
Change in currency rate in % 5% 5%
Effect on profit and loss and net assets (1,193) ) (1

(¢) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or countespwill be unable or unwilling to meet a commitntéhat it has
entered into with the Company.

The Qualitative Risk Management team is in charfieneasuring and monitoring counterparty risk. A
Counterparty Risk Committee oversees the activitthe team. The Company is exposed to the creslkt of
the counterparties with which, or to the brokeesldrs and exchanges through which, it deals, ehétiey
engage in exchange-traded or off-exchange transectiThe Company may be subject to the risk ofdbss
assets placed on deposit with a broker in the esfettie broker’s bankruptcy, the bankruptcy of afgaring
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(c) Credit risk (continued)

broker through which the broker executes and claarssactions, or the bankruptcy of an exchangaricle
house.The Company is exposed to the credit riskedtounterparties with which, or to the brokeesldrs and
exchanges through which, it deals, whether theyagadn exchange-traded or off-exchange transactibimes
Company may be subject to the risk of loss of agskiced on deposit with a broker in the evenhefliroker’s
bankruptcy, the bankruptcy of any clearing brokeotigh which the broker executes and clears tréinsac or
the bankruptcy of an exchange clearing house.

The Company’s exposure to brokers-dealers is weifiutable broker-dealers. The Company’s princigaditrg
activities are primarily with brokers and otherditial institutions located in Europe. At the erfidhe period,
substantially all the investments in securities esvand securities sold, not yet purchased, due linkers and
due to brokers, are positions with and amountstduz from these brokers. All securities transaddiof the
Company are cleared by major securities firms pamsuo customer agreements. The Company had
substantially all its individual counterparty conttions with these brokers and their affiliates.

Amounts appearing in the Statement of Financialititosas due from and due to brokers reflect gross
maximum exposures which contribute to credit riell avhich are detailed by main categories in thi¥dhg

table.
31 December 2010

Due from Brokers Due to Brokers Net
€ € €
Unsettled trades - (282,265) (282,265)
Cash held with custodians 1,467,701 - 1,467,701
Loss on forward contract - (438,407) (438,407)
1,467,701 (720,312) 747,389
31 December 2009
Due from Brokers Due to Brokers Net
€ € €
Unsettled trades - (288,482) (288,482)
Cash held with custodians 312,142 - 312,142
Gain on forward contract 169,351 - 169,351
481,493 (288,482) 193,011

Unsettled trades

Amounts receivable or payable for securities tratisas that have not settled at the year end dlected under
the line unsettled trade. The nominal amount isrtiaximum exposure. Most of the transactions settlea
delivery versus payment basis. The risk on unskttizdes is the difference between the contragitieé and
the replacement price of the transaction wouldbttudker default. Dividends receivable from brokems at risk
for their full nominal amount. All securities traaetions of the Company are cleared by major séesiriirms
pursuant to customer agreements.

Cash held with custodian

BNP Paribas, Jersey Branch has been appointe@ &othpany’s Custodian pursuant to a custodian ageg
under which it is appointed to act as a custodifithe Company’s investments, cash and other assats
accepts responsibility for the safe custody ofghaperty of the Company, which is delivered to acdepted
by the Custodian. The Custodian is entitled to ikeca fee from the Company based on an agreed agse
per annum of the assets held in custody.

BNP Paribas is a large financial institution havingestment grade ratings from the major ratingnages of
Aa2 (Moody’s) and AA (Standard & Poors and Fitch).

The Company has entered into a liquidity enhancéagmreement with Exane BNP Paribas SA (“Exane”Lén
August 2008. Under the agreement, Exane, actingp@xdently but on behalf and in the name of the 2oy,
effects purchases and sales of euro shares ofahmp&hy on Euronext Amsterdam. To enable Exane ¢oadg
the Company has opened a cash account and a mecagtount with BNP Paribas Securities Servicd? B
Paribas Securities Services SA is a wholly-owndassliary of BNP Paribas SA. Any shares of the Campa
purchased by Exane on behalf of the Company andaratelled are held on this securities accourtéemtaime
of the Company. The cash account is being credlited time to time by the Company with the necessary
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(c) Credit risk (continued)

amount in order to fund further purchases of sharkis agreement is tacitly renewed for one yearggd1
December. Because the assets in custody (othecHsim are segregated from the assets of the ¢asidale
credit risk exposure of the Company to BNP Pardoras BNP Paribas Securities Services SA is limitetthe
amount of cash deposited by the Company with thasks. As of 31 December 2010 the net credit exgosu
was €1,185,437 (2009:23,660).

Off balance sheet risk in relation to over-the-deuwlerivatives

Some of the markets in which the Company operates‘@er-the counter” markets. Participants in thes
markets are typically not subject to credit valoatand regulatory oversight as are members of ‘@xgé-
based” markets. To the extent that the Companysisvie over-the-counter transactions in these nsyrke
may take a credit risk with regard to parties withich it trades and also may bear the risk of eeitint
default. These risks may differ materially froms$bdnvolved in exchange-traded transactions dest@bove.

Transactions entered into directly between two tenparties generally do not benefit from these gutibns,
which in turn may subject the Company to the riskt tcounterparty will not settle a transaction éGe@dance
with agreed terms and conditions because of a tiispeer the terms of the contract or because akditcor
liquidity problem. Counterparty risk is increas@d €ontracts with longer maturities when events inégrvene

to prevent settlement. The ability of the Companyttansact business with any one or any number of
counterparties, the lack of any independent evalnaif the counterparties or their financial cafiibs, and

the absence of a regulated market to facilitatdese¢nt, may increase the potential for losseheocdompany.

All of the Company’s exposures to counterparties &ith reputable financial institutions which areleast
single A investment grade rated from the majongatigencies. Counterparty risk exposure is mordtdesly.

The risk management system gives real time maikeaarket position, collateral and risk exposure.

The Company’s exposure to counterparty risk assetiavith counterparty non-performance on over-the-
counter derivatives is generally limited to ther fealue of over the counter contracts reportedsaeta which
are not covered by an equivalent collateral amanudtto the independent amounts requested by cpantes

to cover the risk of a derivative contract.

Exposure to investment other than on Boussard &aGadan Fund Plc.

Part of the cash allocated to the liquidity enhameet programme, which has still not been used yoldack the
shares of the Company, is invested by the liquigityider in “BNP Paribas Cash Invest” a pure momeyket
fund distributed by a subsidiary of the BNP Parils#s group.The Company enters forward foreign cuayen
contracts with Credit Suisse London which is a wealbwn and large financial institution which is @stment
grade and at least single A rated by the majongadgencies. On 31 December 2010, the Company bestia
exposure relative to these derivative instrumerfit€ ®lIL. There is no collateral agreement to protdgs t
exposure and consequently no collateral amount paid

Open forward currency contracts
At 31 December 2010, the Company had contractbédiycand sell the following amounts:

Unrealised
Purchase Currency Unit  Sale Currency Unit Settlement Date  gain/(loss) (Euro)
GBP 17,500 EUR (20,341) 1/4/2011 16
EUR (10,000,000) USD 7,633,792 3/3/2011 179,450
Net unrealised gain 179,466
GBP 24,560,000 EUR (29,187,850) 1/5/2011 (617,513)
Net unrealised Loss (617,513)

(438,047)

At 31 December 2009, the Company had contractédiyaand sell the following amounts:

Unrealised
Purchase Currency Unit Sale Currency Unit SettlemenDate  gain/(loss) (Euro)
GBP (21,912,833) EUR 19,910,000 1/6/2010 514,923
Net unrealised gain 514,923
EUR 2,651,857 GBP (2,356,323) 1/6/2010 (2,440)
EUR 6,635,722 uUsD (10,000,000) 3/3/2010 (343,132)
Net unrealised Loss (345,572)

169,351
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(c) Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to Boussard & Gavaudan Fund Plc

As 98.43% (2009:98.76%) of the Company’s investmere in the Fundas per Investments at fair value
through profit or loss), there is a risk that then& will be unable to pay amounts in full when diide
Company has indirect credit risk exposure throtglnivestment in the Fund.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will @unter difficulty in realising assets or otherwiaésing funds
to meet financial commitments.

The Company'’s financial commitments are represeifnted time to time by:

- fees and other expenses payable

- amounts payable for the share buy backs

- repayment of short term borrowing contracted tatice the share buy backs until the proceeds of the
redemption from the Fund are received and to finaran Sark/ Fund investments

- interests on loans and other expenses and amaoaydblp

- amounts due under forward foreign exchange coustract

The Company manages its ability to fulfil these agitments by combining:
- the use of the working capital

- redemptions in the Fund

- the use of intra-month bridge facility agreemepg(sote 12).

The Company retains an amount of cash with itsodigh which is used as working capital in ordem@anage
day to day expenses such as fees and expensedepayab

(d) Liguidity risk

The Company may redeem its units, shares or inteneghe Fund on a monthly basis and does not haye
special or preferential rights in the Fund. Thisyrfimmit the Company’s ability to realise its investnts at an
optimal price. Redemptions and subscriptions inRbed are used to ensure that the exposure of dhgp@ny
to the Fund is in adequacy with the offering memdtam. The impact of the Sterling versus Euro duthéo
sterling shares will also require such adjustme8tsare buy backs are financed by redemptions irFtirel
which permit the repayment of the money borrowedeurshort term bridge facility. The timing and &iin
redeeming the Fund’s shares may expose the Conifthreybridge facility agreement is recalled by thend.

All financial liabilities of the Company at 31 Deuber 2010 were due to settle in one month. All ¢hes
liabilities, except for the audit fees did settieJanuary 2011.
Less than 1 month

In EURO At 31 December 2010 At 31 December 2009
Other Short Term Loan (6,000,000) (5,500,000)
Due to brokers (282,265) (288,482)
Performance fees Payable (18,413,773) (19,370,343)
Management fee payable (2,595,727) (2,672,436)
Interest Payable (5,014) (5,062)
Audit Fees Payable (5,816) (23,671)
Legal Fees Payable (14,541) -
Administrative Fee Payable - (23,937)
Unrealised loss on forward derivative contract 438,047) -
Total financial liabilities (27,755,183) (27,883,931)

In managing the capital of the Company the InvestriManager seeks to provide consistent absolutengin
accordance with the Company’s investment objectaras policies, for example those related to gearlig
Company operated a share buy-back programme desigmeduce its capital, which has had the faverabl
effect of increasing the net asset value per siace the shares bought back have been purchasadisatount
to their net asset value. Transactions under thgramme are disclosed in Note 11.
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(e) Capital management

Fair value at 31  Fair value at 31
December 2010 December 2009

External Debt 6,000,000 5,500,000
Equity 683,172,154 690,432,788
Ratio = External Debt / Equity 0.88% 0.80%

Over the year the indebtedness of the companyrtasased from 0.80% to 0.88% which is all compriséd
short-term commitments. As explained more in detail note 12 (Other short term loan), short-term
commitments are being used in order to financesti@e-buy back programme on a monthly basis, thwil
Company receives the proceeds from its monthlymgdiens in the Fund.

Long term commitments like Private equity investtseare currently being financed through equity shar
capital.

The Company is not subject to any externally impgasspital requirements.

5. Net gain from financial assets and liabilities ésignated as held for trading
At 31 December 2010 At 31 December 2009

€ €
Held for trading
Net realised loss on forward contracts (607,399) (3,446,488)
Net unrealised gain on forward contracts 604,616 5,914,560
Net Loss/ gain from financial assets and liabilities (2,783) 2,468,072

6. Investments in financial instruments through prdit or loss
31 December 2010 31 December 2009

€ €
Investments
Opening Cost 676,122,772 789,324,249
Additions 689,528,451 1,187,500
Disposals (786,057,915) (101,762,027)
Realized gain 112,508,135 (12,626,950)
Ending Cost 692,101,443 676,122,772
Unrealised gains on investments at fair value 38, 2 41,712,454
Investments at fair value through profit or loss: 709,459,635 717,835,226

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at faivalue through profit or loss

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
€ €
Net gain /(loss) (Realised & unrealised gains) 88,853 162,055,090

7. Related Party transactions

There have been related party transactions asisbetow over the period and as disclosed in n@tasd 9.
The Directors are paid an annual fee of €30,00Chairman is entitled to receive €50,000 per ananththe
Chairman of the audit committee receives on adukitidee of €7,500 per annum.

8. Administration fees

Close Fund Services Limited, the Administratoreigtitled to an annual fee. In addition, the Admtiaitor
outsources the accounting to GlobeOp Financiali€es\.LC for an annual service fee payable monthly.
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9. Management fees and Performance fees

The Company has appointed Boussard & Gavaudan Mssedagement, LP as investment manager pursuant to
an investment management agreement entered irt8 Q@ttober 2006.

Under the Investment Management Agreement, thestment Manager has been given responsibility fer th
day-to-day discretionary management of the Compaagsets in accordance with the Company’s invegtmen
objective and policy, subject to the overall sufson of the Directors.

The Investment Management Agreement is terminajpleither party giving to the other not less thaelte
months' notice in writing, such notice not to egpirefore the third anniversary of admission of @mmpany’s
existing Shares to Euronext Amsterdam, except maite circumstances where, inter alia, the Investme
Manager ceases to have all necessary regulatomyigsons, becomes insolvent or is in material bveafcthe
Investment Management Agreement, in which casenyestment Management Agreement may be terminated
forthwith.

In the event that the Investment Management Agreémderminated before the third anniversary ohadion

of the Company’s existing Shares to Euronext Anastar other than, inter alia, as a result of the nate
breach or insolvency of the Investment Manager, Goenpany would, nonetheless, be obliged to pay the
Investment Manager any management fee or perforenteecthat would otherwise be payable in respethtef
period to such third anniversary.

This has been agreed on the basis of the Investib@nager bearing all the costs and expenses dilsstimg
the Company.

If the Investment Management Agreement is termohatefore 31 December in any year, the performageént
respect of the then current Calculation Period bélicalculated and paid as though the date of tetion were
the end of the relevant Calculation Period.

The Investment Manager receives a managementderjeal monthly and payable quarterly, calculatethet
annual rate of 1.5 per cent of the Net Asset Valllee Investment Manager is also entitled to receive
performance fee.

The Performance Fee will be calculated in respé&ach Calculation Period. The Performance Fed bkal
deemed to accrue on a monthly basis as at eactatiéaiuDay. For each Calculation Period, the Peréooe

Fee will be equal to 20 per cent. of the appremiatn the Net Asset Value per share during that@ation

Period above the net asset value per Share oftheant class (the “Base Net Asset Value per Shafdie

Base Net Asset Value per Share is the highest Ns¢tAValue per Share achieved as at the end gfranipous

Calculation Period (if any).

The Performance Fee in respect of each Calculd&&niod will be calculated by reference to the Nebet
Value per Share before deduction for any accruetbeance Fee. The Performance Fee attributabéaoh
class of Shares shall be paid solely from the eie¥ool underlying each class of Shares suchnthatass of
Share shall bear any part of the Performance Febuliible to any other class of Shares. The effétiedging
the currency exposure of a class of Shares onelegant Pool will be included when the PerformaRee is
calculated. For the purposes of calculating thdoPmance Fee and for the avoidance of doubt, theAdset
Value per Share of a class will include in full aimgrease in the Net Asset Value per Share of ¢hess
attributable to any repurchase by the Companyatfdlass of Shares.

On 17 July 2009, the Company and the Investmentaganagreed to apply a different method to caleulas
performance fee payable by the Company to the tmexs Manager other than the method set out in the
Management Agreement. The objective was to avgidtantial inequitable treatment of shareholdergckvh
would have resulted from overpayment of performareeon a per share basis.

Under the original method performance fee couldbezpayable based on the full year performancelation
to shares that were no longer in existence at gedy leading to the remaining shares in issue gagia much
performance fees on a per share basis. This situatiuld arise because the number of shares ie ismies
over time, either because of (i) conversions betwie two share classes, or (ii) buy back of shasethe
Company.

Under the revised method performance fee is cakdilan each share based on the performance adtribub
that share until such time as that share no loegjsts.

46



Boussard & Gavaudan Holding Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2010

9. Management fees and Performance fees (continued)

At the time of adoption, the Board together with @&dvisers concluded that the new method was far a
reasonable and the Financial Services Authority dudg notified.

To the year ended 31 December 2009, the reviseldoahétas resulted in less performance fee beinglpattie
Company than would have been payable to the Inwdtianager under the existing method set outén th
Management Agreement, the benefit to the Compamglapproximately 2009: €300,000.

Any benefit to the Company in terms of a decreashé performance fee payable under the new melbgyo
is unrestricted. Any benefit to the Investment siger in terms of an increase in the performanceégable
under the new methodology is restricted to no ntloae 5 per cent. of the Company’s net asset value.

For the year ended December 31, 2010 the Managefeentvere €10,393,016 (for year ended December 31,
2009: 9,980,154), at December 31, 2010 €2,595,b2¢dmber 31, 2009: €2,672,436) was payable.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Perfaenizes were €18,413,773 (for year ended Decenther 3
2009: €19,370,343), at December 31, 2010 €18,4833P&cember 31, 2009: €19,370,343) was payable.

10. Share Capital

Authorised Shares

On incorporation, the authorised share capitalhef Company was represented by 100,000,000 shares of
€0.0001 par value. At incorporation, two sharesensibscribed by CO1 Limited and CO2 Limited of ANe
Street, St Peter Port, Guernsey, the subscribetisetdlemorandum of Association. On 13 October 20@6
holders of the two subscriber shares in the Comp@@/1 Limited and CO2 Limited, passed a writtencsle
resolution approving the cancellation of the enéinrsount standing to the credit of the share prenmacoount
immediately after the initial public offering oféhCompany’s existing shares, conditionally uponisiseie of
such shares and the payment in full thereof. Adiegion was made to the Royal Court of Guernsegatafirm

the reduction of the share premium account.

This cancellation was confirmed by the Royal Cant10 November 2006, enabling the Company to effect
purchases of its own shares and/or C shares.

On 1 November 2006, 43,999,998 Class A shares issved fully paid for cash at a price of €10 ed@pa
resolution of shareholders passed on 30 April 2805 authorised share capital of the Company waeased
from €10,000 to €1,010,000 by the creation of 5,000,000 shares of €0.0001 each and 5,000,000,000 C
shares of €0.0001 each.

Allotted, issued and fully paid

As on 31 December 2010 Shares Euro

Class A EURO of € 0.0001 47,411,855 4,741

Class A GBP of € 0.0001 1,932,543 193

As on 31 December 2009 Shares Euro

Class A EURO of € 0.0001 53,978,004 5,398

Class A GBP of € 0.0001 1,688,474 190
Voting

The shareholders shall have the right to receiiice@f and to attend and vote at general meetaighe
Company and each holder of shares being presgmrgon or by proxy or corporate representtive @eating
shall upon a show of hands have one vote and upatl @ach such holder present in person or by ooy
corporate representative shall have one vote pemf each share held by him.

Without prejudice to any special rights previousbnferred on the holders of any existing shareslass of
shares, any share in the Company may be issuedsudtihpreferred, deferred or other special rights o
restrictions whether as to dividend, voting, retafncapital or otherwise as the Company at any thye
ordinary resolution may determine and subject td andefault of such determination as the Board may
determine.Subject to the provisions of the Compma(zuernsey) Laws 2008, the terms and rights attgdo
any class of shares, the Articles and any guidglestablished from time to time by the Directons, Company
may from time to time purchase or enter into a @mitunder which it will or may purchase any of dten
shares.
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10.  Share Capital (continued)

The making and timing of any buy back will be at #ibsolute discretion of the Directors. If at aimyet the
share capital is divided into further classes @freh the rights attached to any class (unlesswiteprovided
by the terms of issue) may whether or not the Campimbeing wound up be varied with the consentritting
of the holders of three-fourths of the issued shafehat class or with the sanction of a spe@sablution of the
holders of the shares of that class.

On a winding-up, the shareholders shall be entittethe surplus assets remaining after paymentldha
creditors of the Company.
11. Treasury shares

The acquisition of treasury shares started on druaey 2008. The Company holds 3.91% (2009: 5.74Pi}s
issued share capital in treasury shares which septs 2,005,832 shares on 31 December 2010.

The Company shall not hold more than 10% of ita@slsshare capital in treasury.
Situation

Company's allotted, issued and fully paid share catal

Prior to the effect of the treasury shares held a€0.0001 each
Nominal Euro Shares Euro Nominal GBP Shares GBP
31 December 2010 € 4,941.7686 49,417,686 €193.254 1,932,543

31 December 2009 €5,734.7836 57,347,836 €198.193 1,688,474

After the effect of the treasury shares acquired a€0.0001 each
Nominal Euro Shares Euro Nominal GBP Shares GBP

31 December 2010 € 4,741.1855 47,411,855 €193.254 1,932,543
31 December 2009 € 5,397.8004 53,978,004 €198.193 1,688,474
Activity
The Company has bought back the following sharesguhe period

Number of Average Number of Average

EUR shares EUR amount Price GBP shares GBP amount Price

31 December 2010 6,278,425 € 65,995,123 € 10.5114 - - -
31 December 2009 8,202,243 € 65,869,535 € 8.0307 ,0080 £184,684.50 £6.1562

The Company has cancelled the following sharesdutie period

Number of Average Number of Average

EUR shares EUR amount Price GBP shares GBP amount Price

31 December 2010 7,642,425 € 76,609,837 € 10.0243 - - -
31 December 2009 6,287,377 € 43,428,714 € 6.9073 442,750 £2,365,826.67 £5.3435

12. Other short term financing

The share buy-back programme is financed by redemptof BG Fund shares. BG Fund has a monthly
liquidity, which means that redemptions are payatblenost once in every calendar month. The Compaeg
not know in advance the amounts and frequency afeshuy-backs for any given month. As a resultneve
month the Company needs a short-term financingchvitimeets by issuing variable funding notes.

In compliance with its investment policy, BG Fundreed, from 2 November 2010, to subscribe for such
interest-bearing variable funding notes issued iy €ompany up to a principal amount of €20 million.
Although the stated maturity of the notes is 18 therfrom their issue date, the Company has the@wobi

redeem at any time the notes at par on a 2 bust@ss notice, which it does every month by appiythe
proceeds of BG Fund shares redemptions.

The terms of the notes are at arm’s length and haee approved by the Board of the Company. Thepaosn
pays an interest at an annual rate equal to aekcept spread over the 1 month Euribor. In additd@ Fund
may at any time, on a 90 calendar days notice,metjue Company to redeem all notes at par.
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12. Other short term financing (continued)

As of 31 December 2010, the total amount due urdernotes was €6,005,014 (outstanding principal:
€6,000,000; interest accrued: €5,014).

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

€ €
Beginning cost (5,500,000) -
Repayments 56,800,000 48,950,000
Drawdown (57,300,000) (54,450,000)
Ending Cost (6,000,000) (5,500,000)
Accrued Interest (5,014) (5,062)
Other short term loan at fair value (6,005,014) (5,505,062)

13. Segment information

For management purposes, the Company is engagattimain operating segment, which invests in fir@nc
instruments. All of the Company’s activities ardemelated, and each activity is dependent on thers.
Accordingly, all significant operating decisionedrased upon analysis of the Company as one segient
financial results from this segment are equivaterhe financial statements of the Company as devho

The following table analyses the Company’s opegatincome per geographical location. The basis for
attributing the operating income is the place ebmporation of the instrument’s counterparty.

2010 2009
Cayman Islands - 162,245,358
Ireland 87,678,215 -
Rest of the world 482,967 1,932,839
Total 88,161,182 164,178,197

The following table analyses the Company’s opegaititome per investment type.

2010 2009
Equity securities 88,153,872 162,055,090
Debt instruments - (355,739)
Derivative financial instruments (2,782) 2,468,072
Foreign exchange gains on financial instrumentsanéir value through profit or
loss 10,092 10,774
Total 88,161,182 164,178,197

14. Comparatives

Comparative information has been provided for tearyended 31 December 2009. Certain comparativeefig
have been reclassified in order to conform to ttesgntation.

15. Post balance sheet events

Acquisition of MPF by Compagnie des Minquiers

On March 3rd 2011, Compagnie des Minquiers, a ndariyed subsidiary of the company held jointly wikie
executive committee members of the Cofigeo Groag, dcquired 100% of MPF. MPF is a holding company
that owns 26,523 shares in Cofigeo, representipgoxgmately 36% of the share capital and 45% ofvibing
rights of Cofigeo. On March 29th 2011, as a resifilthe MPF acquisition and in compliance with Fienc
securities laws, Compagnie des Minquiers, throudtrivhas initiated a mandatory tender offer at S3@€all

the remaining shares of Cofigeo. In order to fireatice MPF acquisition, the Company has subscribed f
shares and convertible bonds issued by Compaggi&d&uiers. The cost of this investment for ther@any

is approximately €18.2m, representing approxima2eipo of the Company’s net assets.

16. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Comma 26 April 2011 at which date these financial
statements were considered final.
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